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31 March 2006

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bestway International Holdings Limited is a limited liability

company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of

business of the Company is located at 18/F, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Group during the year were the

manufacture and trading of plastic products, mainly PVC films.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards

(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles

general ly accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They

have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except

for buildings, which have been measured at fair value. These

financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and

all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except

when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 March 2006. The results of subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on

which the Group obtains control, and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All

significant intercompany transactions and balances within the

Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders

in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and

are adopted for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
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31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial

Amendment Liabilities

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

HK-Int 4 Leases – Determination of the Length of Lease Term in respect of

Hong Kong Land Leases

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23,

27, 31, 33, 36, 37, HKFRS 2 and HK-Int 4 has had no material

impact on the accounting policies of the Group and the

Company and the methods of computation in the Group’s and

the Company’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests on

the face of the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income

statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and

other disclosures. In addition, in prior periods, the Group’s

share of tax attributable to jointly-controlled entities was

presented as a component of the Group’s total tax charge/

(credit) in the consolidated income statement. Upon the

adoption of HKAS 1, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition

results of jointly-controlled entities is presented net of the

Group’s share of tax attributable to jointly-controlled entities.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties and

affected the Group’s related party disclosures.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised as

follows:

(a) HKAS 17 – Leases

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for

own use were stated at valuation less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s leasehold

interest in land and buildings is separated into leasehold

land and leasehold buildings. The Group’s leasehold land

is classified as an operating lease, because the title of

the land is not expected to pass to the Group by the

end of the lease term, and is classified as prepaid land

lease payments, while buildings are classified as part of

property, plant and equipment. Prepaid land premiums

for land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently amortised on

the straight-line basis over the lease term. When the

lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between

the land and buildings elements, the entire lease

payments are included in the cost of the land and

buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and

equipment.

The effects of this change in accounting policy are

summarised in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The comparative amounts for the year ended 31 March

2005 in the consolidated balance sheet have been

restated to reflect the reclassification of the leasehold

land from property, plant and equipment to prepaid

land lease payments.
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31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 – Financial
Instruments

(i) Equity investments

In prior years, the Group’s interests in one of its

former subsidiaries in Mainland China was

classified as a long term investment, which are

intended to be held on a long term basis, stated

at their carrying value at the time of their transfer

of long term investments less (i) amortisation

for the investment amounts which wil l be

recovered through the receipt of subcontracting

fees from the joint venture partner over the

subcontracting period; and (ii) any impairment

losses, on an individual investment basis.

Upon the adopt ion of  HKAS 39,  these

investments held by the Group at 1 April 2005

in the amount of HK$2,866,000 are designated

as long term receivables under the transitional

provisions of HKAS 39 and accordingly are stated

at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

There is no effect on the adoption of HKAS 32

and HKAS 39, as the accounting policies on

measurement of the long term investments are

the same as that of the long term receivable.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 – Financial
Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Convertible bonds

In prior years, convertible bonds were stated at

amortised cost. Upon the adoption of HKAS 32,

convertible bonds are split into liability and equity

components. The effects of the above changes

are summarised in note 2.4 to the financial

statements. In accordance with HKAS 32,

comparative amounts have been restated.

(c) HKFRS 3 – Business Combinations

In prior years, negative goodwill (the “Negative

Goodwill”) arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January

2001 was credited to the consolidated capital reserve

in the year of acquisition and was not recognised in the

income statement until disposal or impairment of the

acquired businesses.

Upon adoption of the HKFRS 3, any excess of the Group’s

interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost

of the acquisition of subsidiaries, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in the income statement.

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have required

the Group to derecognise at 1 April 2005 the carrying

amounts of negative goodwil l  remaining in the

consolidated capital reserve against accumulated losses.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in

note 2.4 to the financial statements. In accordance with

the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, comparative

amounts have not been restated.
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31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(d) HKFRS 5 – Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations

The Group has applied HKFRS 5 prospectively in

accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 5,

which has resulted in a change in accounting policy on

the recognition of a discontinued operation. Under the

previous Statement of Standard Accounting Practice

(“SSAP”) 33 “Discontinued Operations”, the Group

would recognise a discontinued operation at the earlier

of:

• the date the Group entered into a binding sale

agreement; and

• the date the board of directors had approved

and announced a formal disposal plan.

HKFRS 5 requires a component of the Group to be

classified as discontinued when the criteria to be

reclassified as held for sale have been met or when

that component of the Group has been recovered

principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use. The principal impact of this

change in accounting policy is that the results for the

year ended 31 March 2005 attr ibutable to the

discontinued operation have been reclassified to the

“Loss for the year from a discontinued operation” on

the face of the consolidated income statement of the

Group. There is no other effect on the financial

statements on the adoption of HKFRS 5.
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31 March 2006

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, to

these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these

HKFRSs are effective for accounting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a

Lease

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard

will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about

the Group’s objective, policies and processes for managing

capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards as

capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and the

consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 require disclosures relating to financial instruments

and incorporates many of the disclosure requirements of

HKAS 32. This HKFRS shall be applied for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 April 2007.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption

of the pronouncements listed above will not have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of

initial application.
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31 March 2006

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)(i) Effect on the consolidated balance
sheets

Effect of adopting
ÞßÔ�vw3ÚÛ

HKASs 32
At 1 April 2005 HKAS 17# and 39* HKAS 32# HKFRS 3*

Change in
Prepaid classification Derecognition

land lease of equity Convertible of Negative
Effect of new policies payments investment bonds Goodwill Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=>pq =>

=>pq vwá32F =>pq jOku
,ª««£R¡®°± vwá17F # V39F* vwá32F # vwá3F*

h;D: ÀÐaPQ3 u�& ��6�
Õæç3ÚÛ øù"ï ñòfg 5� 4�� Oq

¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

Assets Q[
Decrease in property, ó9�ôõ

plant and equipment Vö÷0Ï (15,240 ) – – – (15,240 )
Increase in prepaid land h;D:øù

lease payments "ïÐÑ 4,236 – – – 4,236
Increase in long term �»J¹

receivables "ïÐÑ – 2,866 – – 2,866
Decrease in long term

investments �»PQ0Ï – (2,866 ) – – (2,866 )
Increase in prepayments, h;"ï�CGV

deposits and ´FJ¹
other receivables "ïÐÑ 104 – – – 104

(10,900 )

Liabilities/equity 45LÀÐ
Decrease in convertible bonds u�&5�0Ï – – (9,723 ) – (9,723 )
Increase in share premium

account &9mnËÐÑ – – 2,046 – 2,046
Increase in equity component u�&5�3

of convertible bonds &ÀQ9ÐÑ – – 14,130 – 14,130
Decrease in capital reserve Q5�÷0Ï – – – (4,581 ) (4,581 )
Decrease in asset

revaluation reserve Q[eè�÷0Ï (2,704 ) – – – (2,704 )
Decrease/(increase) in _qde

accumulated losses 0ÏLxÐÑ} (8,196 ) – (6,453 ) 4,581 (10,068 )

(10,900 )

2.4 FGopqb@ABrs

(a)(i)t23,cuXv@AB

* Opening adjustments taken effect prospectively from

1 April 2005

# Adjustments taken effect retrospectively

* ¸ª««£R¡®°±ÁÒ�
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Effect of adopting
!"#$%&'()

HKASs 32
At 31 March 2006 HKAS 17 and 39 HKAS 32 HKFRS 3

Change in
Prepaid classification Derecognition

land lease of equity Convertible of Negative
Effect of new policies payments investment bonds Goodwill Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
*+,- *+

*+,- %&.32/ *+,- 0123
4566789:9;<= %&.17/ >39/ %&.32/ %&.3/

?@AB CDEFG HIJ KLMN
OPQ'() RSTU 'VWXY Z[ \]^ _-

`+a `+a `+a `+a `+a

Assets Q[

Decrease in property, ó9�ôõV

plant and equipment ö÷0Ï (15,444) – – – (15,444)

Increase in prepaid land h;D:øù

lease payments "ïÐÑ 4,082 – – – 4,082

Increase in long term �»J¹

receivables "ïÐÑ – 2,698 – – 2,698

Decrease in long term

investments �»PQ0Ï – (2,698) – – (2,698)

Increase in prepayments, h;"ï�CGV

deposits and other ´FJ¹

receivables "ïÐÑ 104 – – – 104

(11,258)

Equity ÀÐ

Increase in share

premium account &9mnËÐÑ – – 6,892 – 6,892

Decrease in capital reserve Q5�÷0Ï – – – (4,581) (4,581)

Decrease in asset Q[eè

revaluation reserve �÷0Ï (3,475) – – – (3,475)

Decrease/(increase) in _qde0Ï

accumulated losses LxÐÑ} (7,783) – (6,892) 4,581 (10,094)

(11,258)

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)(i) Effect on the consolidated balance
sheets (Continued)

2.4 FGopqb@ABrsCDE

(a)(i)t23,cuXv@AB
CDE
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31 March 2006

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)(ii)Effect on the balance sheets of the
Company

Effect of adopting
HKAS 32#

Effect of new policy Convertible
bonds

HK$’000
wxyz1?@AB
9:FG1?H32I#

4op@AB UVWXY
¦>�

At 1 April 2005 ,ª««£R¡®°±

Liabilities/equity 45LÀÐ

Decrease in convertible bonds u�&5�0Ï (9,723)

Increase in share premium account &9mnËÐÑ 2,046

Increase in equity component of u�&5�3

convertible bonds ÀÐQ9ÐÑ 14,130

Increase in accumulated losses _qdeÐÑ (6,453)

–

At 31 March 2006 ,ª««¬R­®­¯°±

Equity ÀÐ

Increase in share premium account &9mnËÐÑ 6,892

Increase in accumulated losses _qdeÐÑ (6,892)

–

# Adjustments taken effect retrospectively

2.4 FGopqb@ABrsCDE

(a)(ii)t{*+,cuXv@A
B
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Effect of adopting
wxyz1?@AB

HKAS 17 HKAS 32 HKFRS 3
Prepaid Derecognition

land lease Convertible of Negative
Effect of new policies payments bonds Goodwill Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
9:FG 9:FG 9:;<=>

1?H17I 1?H32I 1?H3I
|}~� ����

4op@AB KL�� UVWXY u�� �G
¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

1 April 2004 ª««¡R¡®°±

Increase in equity

component of u�&5�3

convertible bonds ÀÐQ9ÐÑ – 21,490 – 21,490

Decrease in asset

revaluation reserve Q[eè�÷0Ï (2,794) – – (2,794)

Increase in accumulated

losses _qdeÐÑ (9,206) (3,941) – (13,147)

5,549

1 April 2005 ª««£R¡®°±

Increase in share

premium account &9mnËÐÑ – 2,046 – 2,046

Increase in equity

component of u�&5�3

convertible bonds ÀÐQ9ÐÑ – 14,130 – 14,130

Decrease in asset

revaluation reserve Q[eè�÷0Ï (2,704) – – (2,704)

Decrease in capital reserve Q5�÷0Ï – – (4,581) (4,581)

Decrease/(increase) in _qde

accumulated losses 0ÏLxÐÑ} (8,196) (6,453) 4,581 (10,068)

(1,177)

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)(i) Effect on the balances of consolidated
equity at 1 April 2004 and at 1 April
2005

2.4 FGopqb@ABrsCDE

(b)(i)�!""�$�&()6
!""�$�&()@2
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)(ii) Effect on the balances of equity of the
Company at 1 April 2004 and at 1 April
2005

HKAS 32

Effect of new policy Convertible
Bonds

HK$’000
9:FG1?H32I

4op@AB UVWXY
¦>�

1 April 2004 ª««¡R¡®°±

Increase in equity component of u�&5�3ÀÐQ9ÐÑ

convertible bonds 21,490

Increase in accumulated losses _qdeÐÑ (3,941)

17,549

1 April 2005 ª««£R¡®°±

Increase in share premium account &9mnËÐÑ 2,046

Increase in equity component of u�&5�3ÀÐQ9ÐÑ

convertible bonds 14,130

Increase in accumulated losses _qdeÐÑ (6,453)

9,723

2.4 FGopqb@ABrsCDE

(b)(ii)�!""�$�&()6
!""�$�&()@{
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Effect of adopting
wxyz1?@AB

HKAS 1 HKAS 17 HKAS 32
Prepaid

land lease Convertible
Effect of new policies Presentation payments bonds Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
9:FG1? 9:FG1? 9:FG1?

H1I H17I H32I
|}~� UVW

4op@AB �z KL�� XY �G
¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

Year ended ��!""#$%&%'()
31 March 2006 e$�

Decrease in cost of sales Î@150Ï – 285 – 285
Decrease in other operating ´F×8K:

expenses, net ÒP0Ï – 128 – 128
Increase in finance costs jO15ÐÑ – – (439 ) (439 )

Total increase/(decrease) in profit mýÐÑLxÖÏ}Oq – 413 (439 ) (26 )

Increase/(decrease) in basic .&r5/ýÐÑL
earnings per share x0Ï} – HK 0.01 cent>× HK (0.01 cent>× ) –

Changes in diluted earnings .&/ýsØfg
per share – N/AiÙ$ N/AiÙ$ N/AiÙ$

Year ended ��!""�$%&%'()
31 March 2005 e$�

Decrease in revenue ¹Ð0Ï (39,775 ) – – (39,775 )
Decrease in cost of sales Î@150Ï 41,738 258 – 41,996
Decrease in other income ´F¹Ð0Ï (114 ) – – (114 )
Decrease in selling and

distribution costs Î@VñÎ150Ï 428 – – 428
Decrease in administrative

expenses yæK:0Ï 1,138 – – 1,138
Decrease in other operating

expenses, net ´F×8K:ÒP0Ï 1,396 1,252 – 2,648
Decrease/ (increase) in

finance costs jO150ÏLxÐÑ} 255 – (2,512 ) (2,257 )
Decrease in loss on disposal of ?@Å²×89O

a discontinued operation de0Ï 7,554 – – 7,554
Increase in loss for the year

from a discontinued 5R³Å²×89O
operation deÐÑ (12,620 ) – – (12,620 )

Total decrease/(increase) in loss de0ÏLxÐÑ}Oq – 1,510 (2,512 ) (1,002 )

Decrease/(increase) in basic .&r5de0ÏL
loss per share xÐÑ} – HK 0.04 cent>× HK (0.07 cent>× ) HK (0.03 cent>× )

Changes in diluted loss
per share .&desØfg – N/AiÙ$ N/AiÙ$ N/AiÙ$

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)(i) Effect on the consolidated income
statements for the years ended 31
March 2006 and 2005

2.4 FGopqb@ABrsCDE

(c)(i) ��!""#$6!""
�$%&%'()e$�
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)(ii) Effect on the income statements of the
Company for the years ended 31 March
2006 and 2005

HKAS 32

Convertible

Effect of new policy Bonds

HK$’000
9:FG1?H32I

4op@AB UVWXY
¦>�

Year ended 31 March 2006 ©¥ª««¬­®­¯°±²R³

Increase in finance costs jO15ÐÑ (439)

Total decrease in profit mý0ÏOq (439)

Year ended 31 March 2005 ©¥ª««£R­®­¯°±²R³

Increase in finance costs jO15ÐÑ (2,512)

Total increase in loss deÐÑOq (2,512)

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies

the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income

statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,

whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic

activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which

the Group and the other parties have an interest.

2.5 ��FGoprs

��*+

µ¶)*m°Æ5)*ÃÚ2ÆÚ%¿´
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µ¶)*39·�S¹VJ¹&Ý+(q
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates

the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the

duration of the joint venture entity and the basis on which the

assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and

losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions

of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in

proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in

accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly

or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have

unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or

indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or

joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally

not less than 20% of the joint venture’s share or

registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with

HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less

than 20% of the joint venture’s share or registered

capital, and has neither joint control of, nor is in a

position to exercise significant influence over, the joint

venture.

2.5 ��FGoprsCDE
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to

joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties

having unilateral control over the economic activity of the

jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves

of jointly-controlled entities is included in the consolidated

income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. The

Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the

consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets

under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

Excess over the cost of business
combinations (applicable to business
combinations for which the agreement date
is on or after 1 January 2005)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the

acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

over the cost of the acquisition of subsidiaries and jointly-

controlled entities (previously referred to as negative goodwill),

after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income

statement.

2.5 ��FGoprsCDE
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual

impairment testing for an asset is required (other than

inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount

is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as

the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use

and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows

that are largely independent of those from other assets or

groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is

determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount

of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the

income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the

asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the

impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

2.5 ��FGoprsCDE
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether

there is any indication that previously recognised impairment

losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such

indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A

previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than

goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that

asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying

amount that would have been determined (net of any

depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such

impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the

period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued

amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is

accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy

for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly, or indirectly through one or more

intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under

common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in

the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(c) the party is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group;

2.5 ��FGoprsCDE
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled

or significantly influenced by or for which significant

voting power in such entity resides with, directly or

indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost or valuation

less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The

cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its

purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing

the asset to its working condition and location for its intended

use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and

equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and

maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in

the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be

clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an

increase in the future economic benefits expected to be

obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and

equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured

reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

that asset or as a replacement.

2.5 ��FGoprsCDE
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that

the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially

from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,

plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset

revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to

cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the

deficit is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent

revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to the

extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a

revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation

reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred

to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 5 to 10 years or over the lease

terms, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 2 to 15 years

Furniture, fixtures,

equipment and

motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is

allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part

is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or

retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the

asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of

ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are

accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance

lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present

value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together

with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect

the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised

finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment,

and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such

leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing

nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated

over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership

of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating

leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under

the operating leases are charged to the income statement on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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31 March 2006

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially

stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot

be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,

the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land

and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and

equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:

Long term investment represents the Group’s interests in its

former subsidiary in Mainland China which are intended to be

held on a long term basis. It is stated at its carrying value at

the time of its transfer to a long term investment less (i)

amortisation for the investment amount which will be recovered

through the receipt of subcontracting fees from the joint

venture partner over the subcontracting period; and (ii) any

impairment losses, on an individual investment basis.

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as either

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables, and avai lable-for-sale f inancial assets, as

appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they

are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not

at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable

transaction costs. The Group determines the classification of

its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed

and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance

sheet date.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006: (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are

recognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group

commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales

are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery

of assets within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised

in the income statement when the loans and receivables are

derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation

process.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in

organised financial markets is determined by reference to

quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance

sheet date. For investments where there is no active market,

fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such

techniques include using recent arm’s length market

transactions; reference to the current market value of another

instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash

flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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31 March 2006

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 March 2006)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there

is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans

and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,

the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not

been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed

at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is

reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance

account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in

the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of

impairment exists individually for financial assets that are

individually significant, and individually or collectively for

financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is

determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for

an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or

not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with

similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively

assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed

for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues

to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 March 2006) (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an

event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any

subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the

income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the

asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an

unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value

because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference

between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of

estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market

rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses

on these assets are not reversed.
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31 March 2006

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable
to the year ended 31 March 2006)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

asset or part of a group of similar f inancial assets) is

derecognised where:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired;

• the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from

the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay in full

without material delay to a third party under a “pass-

through” arrangement; or

• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor

transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the

extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee

over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount

of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable
to the year ended 31 March 2006) (Continued)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written

and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or

similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the

Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred

asset that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a

written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar

provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent

of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower

of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise

price.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair

value of the consideration received less directly attributable

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the

liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics

of a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet,

net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the

fair value of the liability component is determined using a

market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this

amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost

basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The

remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option

that is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of

transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option

is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and

equity components of the convertible bonds based on the

allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components

when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
(applicable to the year ended 31 March
2006)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from

the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms

of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the

original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the

difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in

the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises

direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion

of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling

prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion

and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand

deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a

short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,

less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances

comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or

constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is

probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to

settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount

recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance

sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required

to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present

value amount arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is

recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to

items that are recognised in the same or a different period

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods

are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all

temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences except:

• where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that

is not a business combination and, at the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries and interests in jointly-

controlled entities, where the timing of the reversal of

the temporary differences can be controlled and it is

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will

be available against which the deductible temporary differences,

and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised except:

• where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible

temporary differences arises from negative goodwill or

the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at

the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated

with investments in subsidiaries and interests in jointly-

control led entit ies, deferred tax assets are only

recognised to the extent that it is probable that the

temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable

future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each

balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are

reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to

the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will

be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates

that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a

legally right exists to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable

entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and

rewards of ownership have been transferred to the

buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated

with ownership, nor effective control over the goods

sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective

interest method by applying the rate that discounts the

estimated future cash receipts through the expected

life of the financial instrument to the net carrying

amount of the financial assets; and

(c) subcontracting fee income, on an accrual basis and in

accordance with the relevant subcontracting agreements.

Employee benefits

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required

number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible

for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment

Ordinance in the event of the termination of their employment.

The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that

such a termination of employment meets the circumstances

specified in the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future

long service payments expected to be made. The provision is

based on the best estimate of the probable future payments

which have been earned by the employees from their service

to the Group to the balance sheet date.

2.5 ��FGoprsCDE

�R��

¹Ð,5MN'u'½�×ÞýÐV'u

v�³¹Ð|�Ô�rv6�à

(a) ,Î@ã\|]éâ'À�µª3

eCþÿV�kSjøÂW']�

5MNfÆÇ�í-3É³i&

.¢-â'Àcd�J3É³]«

i&'¸%¿@?3ã\�

(b) ýÝ¹¤]�Jq'G�G*+,

3èqR»$�$ýÿE£�÷

èq3äG¹¤`RqìG*Q

[3Ë�Ò��V

(c) �^#¹¤]�'%�^©ª�J

qrv¤Ë4

ÌÍÎÏ

ÌÐÑÒÓÔÕ<M

5MN>¬úû,Å²ú­¨¦|S,5

MN®O~�CR»]̈ Q¯°�=>ú

­���C3�»®OG4éÅ²ú­¨

¦±¨=>ú­���C3!"]5MN

wÍ:;'%"ï4

'%h»±íu':;3�»®OGSÒ

1v÷4'%v÷m�,Éì±úûb±

,5MNSu²'3u'±í;"3Z³

èq�´qì4



!"#$%&

Notes to Financial Statements

'(()**# +,-./01234 83

!""#$%&%'()

31 March 2006

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident

Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those

employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.

Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

participating employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the

income statement as they become payable in accordance with

the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme

are held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest

fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in

Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension

scheme operated by the local municipal government. These

subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of

their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The

contributions are charged to the income statement as they

become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency

and items included in the financial statements of each entity

are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency

transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency

rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the

balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income

statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-

monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency

are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the

fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and

jointly-controlled entities are currencies other than Hong Kong

dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities

of these entities are translated into the presentation currency

of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance

sheet date and, their income statements are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in a

separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity,

the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating

to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the

cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong

Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the

cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas

subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, which have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the

event previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the

Company has to exercise judgement in the area of asset

impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has

occurred that may affect the asset value, or such an event

affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether

the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net

present value of future cash flows, which are estimated based

upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate

key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections

including whether these cash flow projections are discounted

using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected

by management to determine the level of impairment, including

the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash

flow projections, could have a material effect on the net present

value used in the impairment test.
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4. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group discontinued

its business of manufacturing and trading of PVC floor

coverings, following the disposal of its entire equity interest in

Beij ing Will iam Shun Plastic Products Company Limited

(“BJWS”), a 51%-owned subsidiary, which has been loss-

making in recent years.

The results attributable to the PVC floor coverings business for

the year ended 31 March 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

REVENUE �R – 39,775

Cost of sales Î@15 – (41,738)

Gross loss Åe – (1,963)

Other income ´F¹¤ – 114

Selling and distribution costs Î@VñÎ15 – (428)

Administrative expenses yæK: – (1,138)

Other operating expenses, net ´F×8K:ÒP – (1,396)

Finance costs jO15 – (255)

Loss on disposal of ?@°ïÅ²×89O

a discontinued operation 3de – (7,554)

LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM A de7fZ<@

DISCONTINUED OPERATION ÞËßàá – (12,620)

TAX Ë� – –

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM {$�de7fZ<

A DISCONTINUED OPERATION @àá – (12,620)

4. de7fZ<
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4. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operation

are as follows:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Net cash inflow from operating activities ×89O3äGå¤ÒP – 648

Net cash outflow from investing activities PQßg3äGå?ÒP – (435)

Net cash inflow äGå¤ÒP – 213

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

LOSS PER SHARE âWàá

– Basic, from the discontinued Br5]÷]Å²

operation ×89O – (0.38 cent>×)

– Diluted, from the discontinued BsØ]÷]Å²

operation ×89O – N/AiÙ$

2006 2005
!""#$ ª««£R

Loss attributable to equity holders 5)*ÀÐ='W

of the Company from JÓÅ²×89O

the discontinued operation de – HK$12,620,000>�

Weighted average number of shares qì.&r5de�´$3

in issue during the year used in RSS/y&9

the basic loss per share calculation 3ÑÀ� � N/Aã ¡ 3,363,419,178

The calculations of basic loss per share amount from the

discontinued operation are based on:

4. de7fZ<CDE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary

segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining

the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to

the segments based on the location of the customers, and

assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of

the assets. No further geographical segment information is

presented as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and

assets are attributable to its operations in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed

separately, according to the nature of their operations and the

products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business

segments represents a strategic business unit that offers

products and services which are subject to risks and returns

that are different from those of the other business segments.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

Continuing operations:

(a) the PVC films segment engages in the manufacture and

sale of PVC films; and

(b) the corporate and other activities segment engages in

investment holding and provision of administrative

services for Group companies.

Discontinued operation (for the year ended 31 March 2005):

(a) the PVC floor coverings segment engaged in the

manufacture and sale of PVC floor coverings.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain

asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s

business segments for the years ended 31 March 2006 and

2005.

Group

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated

Corporate and PVC floor
PVC films other activities Total coverings

\D7fZ< de7fZ< 23

æç �Z6¶·Z< �� æ�è
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006

2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R

Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�
xe�} xe�} xe�}

Segment revenue: ñò¹Ðà

Sales to external customers Î@Â�Qty 282,886 292,020 – – 282,886 292,020 – 39,775 282,886 331,795

Other income ´F¹¤ – – 481 467 481 467 – – 481 467

Total Oq 282,886 292,020 481 467 283,367 292,487 – 39,775 283,367 332,262

Segment results ñò9O 7,956 10,291 (17,222) (21,218) (9,266) (10,927) – (12,479) (9,266) (23,406)

Interest income and ýÝ¹¤V

unallocated revenue �ñz¹Ð 11,309 5,060 – 114 11,309 5,174

Finance costs jO15 (3,922) (10,134) – (255) (3,922) (10,389)

Share of profits and losses of �ÓI{%¿)9

jointly-controlled entities mýVde – – 276 483 276 483 – – 276 483

Loss before tax �ð�de (1,603) (15,518) – (12,620) (1,603) (28,138)

Tax ðï 2,264 (105) – – 2,264 (105)

Profit/(loss) for the year 5R³mýLxde} 661 (15,623) – (12,620) 661 (28,243)

5. äå,-CDE
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Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated

Corporate and PVC floor
PVC films other activities Total coverings

\D7fZ< de7fZ< 23

æç �Z6¶·Z< �� æ�è
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

xe�} xe�} xe�}

Segment assets ñòQ[ 134,698 147,903 7,613 10,148 142,311 158,051 – – 142,311 158,051

Interests in jointly-controlled entities ,I{%¿)93ÀÐ – – 4,002 8,491 4,002 8,491 – – 4,002 8,491

Unallocated assets �ñzQ[ 19,888 17,573

Total assets OQ[ 166,201 184,115

Segment liabilities ñò45 (37,939) (38,927) (6,088) (5,521) (44,027) (44,448) – – (44,027) (44,448)

Unallocated liabilities �ñz45 (56,114) (146,059)

Total liabilities O45 (100,141) (190,507)

Other segment information: ´FñòQÊà

Depreciation `a 14,006 14,217 234 78 14,240 14,295 – 3,841 14,240 18,136

Recognition of prepaid land 6�D:øù

lease payments "ï 104 123 – – 104 123 – – 104 123

Impairment of interest in ,I{%¿)93ÀÐ

a jointly-controlled entity 30� – – 3,500 7,425 3,500 7,425 – – 3,500 7,425

Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation eèL�3

of buildings deLx/Ê} – (21) 63 (11) 63 (32) – – 63 (32)

Bad debts written off ÔËIÎ – – – – – – – 514 – 514

Loss on disposal of items of ?@ó9�ôõV

property, plant and ö÷ïÌ3de

equipment 1,566 – – – 1,566 – – 875 1,566 875

Loss on disposal of ?@°ÆI{%¿)9

a jointly-controlled entity 3de – – 2,074 – 2,074 – – – 2,074 –

Gain on derecognition of a long ��6��»J¹Ë"

term receivable 3/ý – – (1,636) – (1,636) – – – (1,636) –

Gain on derecognition of prepaid ��6�D:øù

land lease payments "ï3/ý (206) (1,178) – – (206) (1,178) – – (206) (1,178)

Capital expenditure Q5K: 1,689 2,102 65 23 1,754 2,125 – 435 1,754 2,560

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Group

5. äå,-CDE
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the

net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts, but excludes intra-group transactions.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
\D7fZ< de7fZ< ��
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R

Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

Revenue �R

Sale of goods Î@ã\ 282,886 292,020 – 39,775 282,886 331,795

Other income ¶·�À

Bank interest income �yýÝ¹¤ 90 6 – – 90 6

Subcontracting fee income �^#¹¤ 481 467 – – 481 467

Others ´F 119 114 – 114 119 228

690 587 – 114 690 701

6. �R6¶·�À
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Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
\D7fZ< de7fZ< ��
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated) (Restated)

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
µ/ Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

xe�} xe�}

Cost of inventories sold S@âã15 260,773 272,238 – 41,738 260,773 313,976

Depreciation `a 14 14,240 14,295 – 3,841 14,240 18,136

Less: Amount included in 0à1¤S@âã

cost of inventories sold 153�P (13,544) (13,452) – (3,819) (13,544) (17,271)

696 843 – 22 696 865

Amortisation of a long �»J¹Ë"L

term receivable/ �»PQ3sÎ

long term investment 168 284 – – 168 284

Recognition of 6�D:øù

prepaid land "ï

lease payments 15 104 123 – – 104 123

Minimum lease D:VL�

payments under 3×8øù

operating leases øGZ["ï

in respect of land

and buildings 3,062 3,568 – – 3,062 3,568

Less: Amount included in 0à1¤S@âã

cost of inventories sold 153�P (2,366) (2,307) – – (2,366) (2,307)

696 1,261 – – 696 1,261

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

7. ÞËßàá
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued)

Continuing Discontinued
operation operation Total
\D7fZ< de7fZ< ��
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated) (Restated)

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
µ/ Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

xe�} xe�}

Auditors’ remuneration Ö�r¼G 850 890 – – 850 890

Employee benefits úûüýK:

expense (excluding xi^_

directors’ remuneration «î¼G

– note 9): Bµ/9}à

Wages and salaries +QV·G 11,787 11,541 – 1,795 11,787 13,336

Less: Amount 0à1¤S@

included in cost of âã15

inventories sold 3�P (4,828) (4,691) – (1,300) (4,828) (5,991)

6,959 6,850 – 495 6,959 7,345

Pension scheme 45Gq°9"

contributions 271 260 – 93 271 353

Less: Forfeited 0àj¹9"

contributions – – – – – –

Net pension scheme 45Gq°

contributions 9"ÒP 271 260 – 93 271 353

Impairment of an interest °ÆI{%¿)93

in a jointly-controlled ÀÐ30�*

entity * 3,500 7,425 – – 3,500 7,425

Deficit/(surplus) on eèL�3deL

revaluation of x/Ê}*

buildings * 63 (32) – – 63 (32)

Bad debts written off * ÔËIÎ* – – – 514 – 514

Loss on disposal of ?@ó9�ôõ

items of property, Vö÷ïÌ

plant and equipment * 3de* 1,566 – – 875 1,566 875

Loss on disposal of ?@°ÆI{

a jointly-controlled %¿)9

entity * 3de* 2,074 – – – 2,074 –

Gain on derecognition of ��6��»J¹Ë"

a long term receivable * 3/ý* (1,636) – – – (1,636) –

Gain on derecognition ��6�D:

of prepaid land lease øù"ï3

payments * /ý* (206) (1,178) – – (206) (1,178)

* These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net”

on the face of the consolidated income statement.

7. ÞËßàáCDE

* ÄiïÌmq¤§¨¹ÐËSy´F×

8K:ÒPzJ4
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8. FINANCE COSTS

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Interest on: Ô�ãï3ýÝà

Bank loans and other �y`"V´F`"

loans wholly repayable Í,£RS

within five years n��� 3,461 6,060

Convertible bonds u�&5� 439 4,168

Finance leases *Qø¦ 22 161

Total interest ýÝOP 3,922 10,389

Attributable to a discontinued JÓÅ²×89O

operation (note 4) xµ/4} – 255

Attributable to continuing operations Ó�,§¨¹ÐË3

reported in the consolidated JÓ=³×89O

income statement 3,922 10,134

3,922 10,389

8. ;<�{

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Fees for independent (2A×y«îØG

non-executive directors 180 180

Other emoluments for executive directors: ×y«î3´F¼Gà

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ·G�ÙwV�óüý 2,589 3,170

Pension scheme contributions 45Gq°39" 24 24

2,613 3,194

2,793 3,374

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

9. ëìíM

RS]«î¼Gno=>&¨ÇÈ�'(

)*v��û�wxy�û�wz}V=>

)*��á161Ú���Ò!\Ôà



!"#$%&

Notes to Financial Statements

'(()**# +,-./01234 95

!""#$%&%'()

31 March 2006

Salaries,
allowances Pension

and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
îM®ïð6

ñM ò­ÎÏ ó�Gô íM��
¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

2006 !""#$

Executive directors: ×y«îà

Tang Kuan Chien ÛÜÝ – 1,200 12 1,212

Chang Bin Lin Þßà – 180 – 180

Tang Wei Lun Ûáâ – 924 12 936

Andy Hsiao-An Yuan Andy Hsiao-An Yuan – 60 – 60

Cheung Ming Leung Denver Þ�ã – 50 – 50

Lam Chi Yin Henry àä3 – 75 – 75

Yang Ting åæ – 100 – 100

Independent non-executive (2A×y«îà

directors:

Au Kwok Yee Benjamin ç#Y 80 – – 80

Hung Shean I è�° 50 – – 50

Wong Nai Ping ém� 50 – – 50

180 2,589 24 2,793

2005 !""�$

Executive directors: ×y«îà

Tang Kuan Chien ÛÜÝ – 1,414 12 1,426

Chang Bin Lin Þßà – 240 – 240

Tang Wei Lun Ûáâ – 539 7 546

Cheung Ming Leung Denver Þ�ã – 50 – 50

Yang Ting åæ – 240 – 240

Wong Chi Chung éêë – 687 5 692

Independent non-executive (2A×y«îà

directors:

Au Kwok Yee Benjamin ç#Y 80 – – 80

Hung Shean I è�° 50 – – 50

Wong Nai Ping ém� 50 – – 50

180 3,170 24 3,374

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

9. ëìíMCDE

RScd«îìí2{îìíbc¼GÌ

ÁÂ4



!"#$%&

Notes to Financial Statements

Bestway  International Holdings Limited Annual Report 200696

!""#$%&%'()

31 March 2006

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two

(2005: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set

out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the

remaining three (2005: two) non-director, highest paid

employees for the year are as follows:

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ·G�ÙwV�óüý 1,260 701

Pension scheme contributions 45Gq°39" 12 24

1,272 725

The remuneration of the three (2005: two) non-director, highest

paid employees fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors of the Company or any of the five highest paid

individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

or as compensation for loss of office.

10. �õö÷îíÌÍ

RS£<Zï·¼úû^_w<xª««

£Rà­<}«î]¿i3¼GÒ!Ó,�

�µ/94ÊÔ­<xª««£Ràw<}A

«îZï·¼úû,RS3¼G\Ôà

­*xª««£Ràw*}A«îZï·¼

úûÌ¼G¶,«¥1,000,000>�¼G

ô�4

RS]5MNZd_+ïðñ«î2bc

£<Zï·¼úûÑ¤5MN2>+D±

3ò��:;bc"ï4
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Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Current year provision: 5R³1÷à

Hong Kong => 143 –

Mainland China J#C� 271 –

Underprovision/(overprovision) of HR#5»ðï3

current tax in respect of prior years: i?1÷Lx�P1÷}à

Hong Kong => – 105

Mainland China J#C� (2,678) –

(2,678) 105

Tax charge/(credit) for the year R³ðïK:LxMN} (2,264) 105

11. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%

on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during

the year (2005: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have

been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the regions in

which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

One of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China is exempt

from income tax for two years starting from its first profitable

year of operations and is entitled to a 50% relief from income

tax for the following three years under the Income Tax Law of

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which has been

loss-making since its establishment and accordingly income tax

has not been provided for the year ended 31 March 2006

(2005: Nil). For another subsidiary operating in Mainland China,

as it remains loss-making during the year, no income tax has

been provided (2005: Nil).

11. Ë�

=>ý¾ðm�RS�,=>3èqJ¢

ðmý�ðÿ17.5%>?1÷xª««£

Rà«}4́ F:'3J¢ðmý3ðïm

��5MN×89O�¶#ó3äyE

��~�V��]noÄi#ó3c$ðÿ

qì4

noJôWõIT#xyJ#z}�¾ðE]

>¬fJ#C�×83µ¶)*¸Ü|½

ý×8R³ÁwRSNö�¾ð]�,´

í­RS½÷050%3�¾ð45MNf

J#C�×83´J°Æµ¶)*]´/

012�÷ ]¾de]lh©¥ª««

¬R­®­¯°±²R³cd>?ý¾ð

v÷xª««£Rà«}4̧ ,�°Æ,J

#C�×83µ¶)*RSø]¾de]

lhcd>?ý¾ðv÷xª««£Rà

«}4
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11. TAX (Continued)

The Group has  tax  losses  ar i s ing in  Hong Kong of

HK$150,623,000 (2005: HK$150,665,000) that are available

indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the

companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have

not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have

arisen in the companies that have been loss-making for some

time.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)

before tax using the statutory rates for the locations in which

the Company, its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

at the effective tax rates is as follows:

Group – 2006

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
9: øù�ú �G

Ü:Ý Ü:Ý Ü:Ý

Profit/(loss) before tax �ð�mýLxde} 5,869 (7,472) (1,603)

Tax at the statutory tax rates �ECðÿqì3ðï 1,027 (2,466) (1,439)

Lower tax rate/tax concession for |�ù9V:'t�

specific provinces or local authority 3~[ðÿLðO÷0 – 986 986

Adjustments in respect of current tax of # �R³t»ðï

previous years 3Ó{ – (2,678) (2,678)

Income not subject to tax �Íßð3¹¤ (2,239) – (2,239)

Expenses not deductible for tax iuRð3K: 1,397 271 1,668

Tax losses not recognised �6�ðïde 1,818 1,480 3,298

Tax losses utilised from previous periods �»�g$3ðïde3´$ (1,860) – (1,860)

Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s 5MN��$ðÿqì3

effective rate ðïK:LxMN} 143 (2,407) (2,264)

11. Ë�CDE

5MN,=>]¾ðïde150,623,000

>�xª««£Rà150,665,000>�}]u

$,MÎ?äde)*±íbc»Æ3ð

ïmý4l+Äiðïdeµ÷]S]¾

°ú|±de3)*]jOklcd#h

ide6��TðïQ[4

�5)*V´µ¶)*�f#óECðÿ

qìÙ$,�ð�mýLxde}3ðï

K:-��$ðÿqì3ÍË]�VÙ$

ðÿx¼ECðÿ}-�$ðÿ3ÍË\

Ôà

{éêJ!""#$
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11. TAX (Continued)

Group – 2005

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=> J#C� Oq

¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

Loss before tax (including loss from �ð�dex^_Å²

a discontinued operation) ×89O3de} (15,871) (12,267) (28,138)

Tax at the statutory tax rates �ECðÿqì3ðï (2,777) (4,048) (6,825)

Lower tax rate/tax concession for specific |�ù9V:'t�

provinces or local authority 3~[ðÿLðO÷0 – 1,315 1,315

Adjustments in respect of current tax of # �R³t»ðï3Ó{

previous years Ó{ 105 – 105

Income not subject to tax �Íßð3¹¤ (33,945) – (33,945)

Expenses not deductible for tax iuRð3K: 32,858 – 32,858

Tax losses not recognised �6�ðïde 4,687 2,733 7,420

Tax losses utilised from previous periods �»�g$3ðïde3´$ (823) – (823)

Tax charge at the Group’s 5MN��$ðÿqì3

effective rate ðïK: 105 – 105

Tax charge attributable to a discontinued JÓ°ïÅ²×89O

operation (note 4) 3ðïK:xµ/4} –

Tax charge attributable to continuing Ó�,§¨¹ÐË3

operations reported in the JÓ=³×89O3

consolidated income statement ðïK: 105

11. Ë�CDE

{éêJ!""�$
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12. LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The loss from ordinary activities attributable to equity holders

of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2006 dealt with

in the financial statements of the Company, was HK$5,562,000

(2005: HK$29,062,000) (note 33(b)).

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is

based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company of HK$599,000 (2005: a loss

of HK$28,133,000 (restated)), and the weighted average

number of 5,048,714,336 (2005: 3,363,419,178) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts for the year ended

31 March 2006 and 2005 have not been disclosed, as the

convertible bonds outstanding during both years had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share for both

years.

12. {*+QR\û«ºü)ý
Z<àá

5)*3jOklSûÓ3©¥ª««¬

R­®­¯°±²R³5)*ÀÐ='W

JÓ±d9OdeÒP+5,562,000>�

xª««£Rà29,062,000>�}xµ/33

(b)}4

13. {*+QR\û«ºüâW
þÏÿCàáE

.&r5mýLxde}m�5R³5)

*ÀÐ='WJÓmýLxde}599,000

>�xª««£Rà28,133,000>�xe

�}}VRSS/yüc&&93ÑÀ�

  � 5 ,048 ,714 ,336&x ª « « £

Rà3,363,419,178&}qì4

¸,©¥ª««¬RVª««£R­®­

¯°±²R³�½¾�3u�&5�ÍÄ

iR³.&r5mýLxde},ùsØ

ÚÛ]Ïhc���ÄiR³3.&sØ

mýLxde}4
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Furniture,
fixtures,

equipment
Land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

KL ¯°±² !"#$®
~�6%& ­Z#8 6'( ±²6)* 3G

Ü:Ý Ü:Ý Ü:Ý Ü:Ý Ü:Ý

31 March 2006 !""#$%&%'()

At 1 April 2005: ,ª««£R¡®°±à

Cost or valuation (restated) 152è�xe�} 9,110 12,031 155,159 9,379 185,679

Accumulated depreciation _q`a – (5,348) (96,972) (8,017) (110,337)

Net carrying amount Ë�Ò�

(restated) xe�} 9,110 6,683 58,187 1,362 75,342

At 1 April 2005, net of ,ª««£R¡®°±]

accumulated depreciation _q`aÒP 9,110 6,683 58,187 1,362 75,342

Additions ý7 – – 398 1,356 1,754

Disposals/write-off ?@LIÎ – – (1,610) – (1,610)

Revaluation eè 286 – – – 286

Exchange realignment �IÓ{ 35 188 1,566 29 1,818

Depreciation provided during

the year RS`a (227) (1,429) (11,985) (599) (14,240)

At 31 March 2006, net of ,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]

accumulated depreciation _q`aÒP 9,204 5,442 46,556 2,148 63,350

At 31 March 2006: ,ª««¬R­®­¯°±à

Cost or valuation 152è� 9,204 12,368 148,039 9,461 179,072

Accumulated depreciation _q`a – (6,926) (101,483) (7,313) (115,722)

Net carrying amount Ë�Ò� 9,204 5,442 46,556 2,148 63,350

Analysis of cost and valuation: 15Vè�3ñqà

At cost �15 – 12,368 148,039 9,461 169,868

At 31 March 2006 �ª««¬R

valuation ­®­¯°±3è� 9,204 – – – 9,204

9,204 12,368 148,039 9,461 179,072

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

14. ­Z®¯°6±²

{éê
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Furniture,
fixtures,

equipment
Land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

øù ôõö÷ ;CK7�
D:VL� ó9KØ VMN ö÷VQR ¨q

¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

31 March 2005 !""�$%&%'()

At 1 April 2004: ,ª««¡R¡®°±à

Cost or valuation 152è� 35,390 12,230 229,123 10,900 287,643

Prior year adjustment 7HR³Ó{ (21,000 ) – – – (21,000 )

Accumulated depreciation _q`a – (4,799 ) (132,668 ) (9,742 ) (147,209 )

Net carrying amount Ë�Ò�

(restated) xe�} 14,390 7,431 96,455 1,158 119,434

At 1 April 2004, net of ,ª««¡R¡®°±]

accumulated depreciation _q`aÒP 14,390 7,431 96,455 1,158 119,434

Additions ý7 1,085 – 288 1,187 2,560

Disposals ?@ – – (1,463 ) (40 ) (1,503 )

Disposal of a subsidiary ?@°Æµ¶)* (5,849 ) – (20,781 ) (528 ) (27,158 )

Revaluation eè 145 – – – 145

Depreciation provided during

the year RS`a (661 ) (748 ) (16,312 ) (415 ) (18,136 )

At 31 March 2005, net of ,ª««£R­®­¯°±]

accumulated depreciation _q`aÒP 9,110 6,683 58,187 1,362 75,342

At 31 March 2005: ,ª««£R­®­¯°±à

Cost or valuation 152è� 9,110 12,031 155,159 9,379 185,679

Accumulated depreciation _q`a – (5,348 ) (96,972 ) (8,017 ) (110,337 )

Net carrying amount Ë�Ò� 9,110 6,683 58,187 1,362 75,342

Analysis of cost and valuation: 15Vè�3ñqà

At cost �15 – 12,031 155,159 9,379 176,569

At 31 March 2005 ,ª««£R­®­¯°±

valuation 3è� 9,110 – – – 9,110

9,110 12,031 155,159 9,379 185,679

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Group

14. ­Z®¯°6±²CDE

{éê
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term

leases outside Hong Kong.

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued by LCH (Asia-

Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), independent professionally

qualified valuers, on the open market, existing use basis, at 31

March 2006 at HK$9,204,000 in aggregate. The deficit and

surplus so arising has been charged to the consolidated income

statement and credited to the asset revaluation reserve as to

HK$63,000 (note 7) (2005: a surplus of HK$32,000 (restated))

and HK$349,000 (2005: HK$113,000 (restated)), respectively.

Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their

carrying values would have been approximately HK$8,375,000

(2005: HK$8,651,000 (restated)).

The net book value of the Group’s assets held under finance

leases included in the total amount of a motor vehicle at 31

March 2006 amounted to HK$733,000 (2005: Nil).

At 31 March 2005 and 2006, certain of the Group’s buildings

were pledged to secure certain credit facilities granted to the

Group (note 25). At 31 March 2005, certain of the Group’s

plant and machinery were pledged to secure a loan from a

shareholder granted to the Group (note 28).

14. ­Z®¯°6±²CDE

5MN�J»ø¦,=>��='D:V

L�4

D:VL�mno(2þ9¨Q¯è�r

ýÿyò�r'()*xyýÿyz},ª

««¬R­®­¯°±f)Kûü�ä'

´$3rvè�+¨I9,204,000>�4#

h[�3deV/Ê63,000>�xµ/7}

xª««£Rà32,000>�/Êxe�}}V

349,000>�xª««£Rà113,000>�

xe�}}Sñ�,§¨¹ÐËR�Vq¤

Q[eè�÷4

éD:VL� ���15�0_¶`a

V0�de�Ë]w´Ë��J¦+

8,375,000>�xª««£Rà8,651,000>

�xe�}}4

,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]̂ _fQR

Ôno*Qø¦='3Q[Ë�Ò�+

733,000>�xª««£Rà«}4

,ª««¬RVª««£R­®­¯°

±]5MN>¬L�SÂM!]"�+5M

N�¾>¬x`*Qxµ/25}4,ª««

£R­®­¯°±]5MN>¬ôõö÷

VMNSÂM!]"��¾°*&E#Â

5MN3`"xµ/28}4
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Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)
!""#$ ª««£R

Ü:Ý ¦>�
xe�}

Carrying amount at beginning of year Ro3Ë�n�

As previously reported \��� – –

Effect of adopting HKAS 17 Þß=>pqvwá17F3

(note 2.2(a)) ÚÛxµ/2.2(a)} 4,340 9,000

As restated e� 4,340 9,000

Disposals during the year RS?@ (50) (4,537)

Recognised during the year RS6� (104) (123)

Carrying amount at 31 March ,­®­¯°±3Ë�n� 4,186 4,340

Current portion included in prepayments, h;"ï��GV

deposits and other receivables ´FJ¹Ë"3¼»Q9 (104) (104)

Non-current portion A¼»Q9 4,082 4,236

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The prepaid land lease payments in respect of a parcel of land

(the “Land”) located at Lingxia Development Area, Shishuikou

Village, Qiaotou Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province

of the PRC, together with a factory premises (the “Building”)

constructed thereon. The Group has not yet obtained the title

certificates for the Land and the Building because the land

premium of the Land has not yet been paid up. Having

consulted with the Group’s legal advisor in Mainland China,

the directors considered that the Group has the right to use

the Land and the Building erected thereon. After payment of

the land premium and attending the necessary administrative

procedures, the Group should be able to obtain the land use

right certificate and the realty title certificate for the Land and

the Building, respectively. The aggregate carrying values of the

Land and the Building in this respect as at 31 March 2006

amounted to approximately HK$4,186,000 and HK$7,560,000,

respectively.

15. |}~�KL��

°�<,J#$EùE%û&�'(Ä)

*+,K/Î3D:xyD:z}�V,Ä

-./3ôõó9xyL�z}3h;D:

øù"ï4lÄD:01·�ö?:n]5

MNø��¾ÄD:VL�Ì9Àv]×

235MN,J#C�ÌE�45í]«

î�+5MN'À´$D:VfD:�.

/Ìôõ4,ö;:nViÇ�ñÌyæ

�³í]5MNJuñ��¾D:VL�

ÌD:´$ÀvVõ:[9Àv4,ª«

«¬R­®­¯°±]ÄD:VL�3Ë

�n�OPñ�+ 4,186,000>�V

7,560,000>�4
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
(Continued)

The Land is situated in Mainland China under a medium term

lease was pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the

Group (note 25).

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
{*+

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Unlisted shares, at cost A�û&9]�15� 159,593 159,593

Provision for impairment 0�v÷ (147,956) (147,956)

11,637 11,637

Due from subsidiaries J¹µ¶)*3"ï 434,409 426,613

Provision for impairment 0�v÷ (361,871) (348,371)

72,538 78,242

Due to subsidiaries J;µ¶)*3"ï (17,996) (18,076)

66,179 71,803

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of

these amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their

fair values.

15. |}~�KL��CDE

ÄD:<,J#C�]�J»ø¦='c

SÂM!]"�+5MN�¾>¬x`*

Qxµ/25}4

16. ���*+@T,

-µ¶)*3ÉÊmdM!�NÝViö

;C��R»4J¹LJ;µ¶)*"ï

3Ë��-´)�n��>4
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Nominal
value of

issued and
Place of paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ share/ of equity
registration registered attributable

Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
g+,6-. {*+

/0�¤ÿ/0 W{1¨ÿ ºüWQ
23 67f�4 /0,{ 5ä6 7sZ<

Direct Indirect
89 :9

Bestway Group British Virgin US$1,100 100 – Investment holding

International Limited Islands/ 1,1006� PQ%&

Hong Kong

7¶E89:L

=>

Bestget Plastic Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 – 100 Property holding and

Products Limited => Non-voting sale of plastic

!;YZT\'()* deferred products

(“Deferred”) ó9='VÎ@YZ

HK$3,900,000 [\

(note (a))

üc&

2>�

dP3À�T&9

xy�T&9z}

3,900,000>�

xµ/ (a)}

Bestway Plastic Products Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 – 100 Sale of plastic products

Limited => Deferred Î@YZ[\

!"YZT\'()* HK$37,440,000

(note (a))

üc&

2>�

�T&9

37,440,000>�

xµ/ (a)}

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

16. ���*+@T,CDE

67µ¶)*3Ò!Ó�\Ôà
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Happy Trip Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 – 100 Sale of plastic products

<9'()* => Deferred Î@YZ[\

HK$1,200,000

(note (a))

üc&

2>�

�T&9

1,200,000>�

xµ/ (a)}

Luen Fat Hong Investment British Virgin Ordinary – 100 Property holding

Limited Islands/ US$100 (note (d))

(“Luen Fat Hong”) Hong Kong üc& ó9='

7¶E89:L 1006� xµ/ (d)}

=>

Rich Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 – 100 Investment holding

=A'()* => Deferred PQ%&

HK$1,000,000

(note (a))

üc&

2>�

�T&9

1,000,000>�

xµ/ (a)}

Nominal
value of

issued and
Place of paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ share/ of equity
registration registered attributable

Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
g+,6-. {*+

/0�¤ÿ/0 W{1¨ÿ ºüWQ
23 67f�4 /0,{ 5ä6 7sZ<

Direct Indirect
89 :9

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. ���*+@T,CDE
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Nominal
value of

issued and
Place of paid-up Percentage
incorporation/ share/ of equity
registration registered attributable

Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
g+,6-. {*+

/0�¤ÿ/0 W{1¨ÿ ºüWQ
23 67f�4 /0,{ 5ä6 7sZ<

Direct Indirect
89 :9

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. ���*+@T,CDE

Best Faith Plastic Products Hong Kong HK$10,000 – 100 Sale of plastic products

Limited (“Best Faith”) => 10,000>� Î@YZ[\

!xYZT\'()*

xy!xz}

Dongguan Bestway PRC/ US$12,741,664 – 97.65 Manufacture of

Plastic Manufactory Mainland 12,741,6646� plastic products

(note (b)) China TUYZ[\

E%!"YZT\ô J#L

xµ/ (b)} J#C�

Dongguan Best Faith PRC/ US$2,826,710 – 100 Manufacture of

Plastic Products Mainland 2,826,7106� plastic products

Limited (note (c)) China TUYZ[\

E%!xYZT\ J#L

'()*xµ/ (c)} J#C�

Fullson Resources British Virgin US$1 – 100 Investment holding

Limited (“Fullson”) Islands 16� PQ%&

=ÕQ�'()* 7¶E89:

xy=Õz}
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The profits which the company may determine to distribute in

respect of any financial year shall be distributed, as regard the

first HK$1,000,000,000,000 thereof among the holders of

ordinary shares, with one-half of the remaining balance of the

said profits being distributed among the holders of the non-

voting deferred shares and the other half of such remaining

balance being distributed among the holders of ordinary shares.

Save as aforesaid, the non-voting deferred shares carry no

other rights to dividends. The non-voting deferred shares carry

no rights to attend or vote at general meetings, but carry the

rights to receive one-half of the balance of any surplus in a

return of capital in a winding-up after the holders of the

o rd ina r y  sha re s  have  re ce i ved  a  to ta l  re tu r n  o f

HK$500,000,000,000.

(b) This subsidiary is registered as a contractual joint venture under

the PRC law.

(c) This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-owned foreign

enterprise under the PRC law.

(d) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 11 May 2006, the

Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Luen Fat Hong

to an independent third party at  a considerat ion of

RMB4,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,038,000).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

16. ���*+@T,CDE

µ/à

(a) )*�C#bcjæR³ñç3Ü

1,000,000,000,000>�mý£ñçÂ

ãüc&='W]�[mýÊP3°>

£ñçÂdP3À�T&93='W]

�ÄÊP3�°>wñçÂüc&=

'W]��[��]dP3À�T&9

&dÀý²'&Ý4dP3À�T&9

«d?Â='WÀý?@&ECp2

,p�P3]ëµ'Àýu,¨A4�

Q5|]füc&='W½4�Q5O

P500,000,000,000>�í¹�´Êb

c/Ê3°>4

(b) hµ¶)*mnoJ#E�/0+¨

¦a¨8)*4

(c) hµ¶)*mnoJ#E�/0+X

�Q)94

(d) Éì±í,ª««¬R£®¯°±]5

MN��nWõþ4,200,000�x�i

,¦4,038,000>�}?@´ Luen Fat

HongXQÀÐÂ(2á­'4

«î�+�lÓ�35)*µ¶)*mÍ

5MNRS39·'eCÚÛ]2Ù15

MNQ[Ò�367Q94«î�+Ó�

´Fµ¶)*3Ò!p¡¢'%QÊ7,

B�4



!"#$%&

Notes to Financial Statements

Bestway  International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006110

!""#$%&%'()

31 March 2006

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Share of net assets ñÓQ[Ò� 48,194 49,183

Provision for impairment 0�1÷ (44,192) (40,692)

4,002 8,491

17. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

The amount of Negative Goodwill remaining in the consolidated

reserves, arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled entities

prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business Combination” in

2001, was HK$4,581,000 as at 31 March 2005. Upon the

adoption of HKFRS 3 on 1 April 2005, such Negative Goodwill

was derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to the

opening balance of accumulated losses.

The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity was unsecured,

interest-free and had no fixed term of repayment. The carrying

amount of the amount due from a jointly-controlled entity

approximates to its fair value.

17. ü�����ZQR

nopq�Ovwá30Fy9O¨<z3

78a��],ª««°RÞßpq�O

vwá30F�l¹ºI{%¿)9�,

ª««£R­®­¯°±¾Hf§¨�÷

34��+4,581,000>�4,ª««£R

¡®°±Þß=>jOkuvwá3F

í]hi4��S���6�]cÍ_qd

e3»o�P>?�JÓ{4

I{%¿)93C"+dM!�NÝVd

;C�"»4J¹I{%¿)9"ï3Ë

��-´)�n��>4
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Percentage
of ownership

Place of interest, voting
registration power and

Name Business structure and operations profit sharing Principal activity
WQ®T;Q

/067f 6Ï<ä=
23 Z<>? �4 5ä6 7sZ<

Shenzhen Wuye Jifa Corporate PRC/ 25 Property holding

Warehouse Co., Ltd. Mainland China

(“SWJ”)

DEó9;/F� )* J#LJ#C� 25 ó9='

'()*xy;/F�z}

17. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity as at 31 March 2006

are as follows:

The above investment in SWJ is indirectly held by the Company.

SWJ’s major asset is the holding of a parcel of land located at

Yantian Port, Yantian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province of the

PRC (the “Yantian Land”).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 11 May 2006, the

Group’s entire 25% of equity interest in SWJ was disposed of

through the disposal of the Group’s entire equity interest in

Luen Fat Hong, which holds the 25% equity interest in SWJ

(note 16(d)).

The impairment loss of HK$3,500,000 (2005: HK$7,245,000)

for the year was determined by management with reference to

the net realisable value of SWJ as at the balance sheet date in

accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

The accumulated deficit arising from the revaluation of the

Yantian Land as at 31 March 2005 performed by LCH, a firm

of independent professionally qualified valuers, together with

the additional impairment loss of HK$3,500,000 has been

included in the assessment of provision for impairment.

17. ü�����ZQRCDE

,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]I{%¿)

9QÊ\Ôà

5)*ÆÚ='��,;/F�3PQ4

;/F�367Q[+='<,J#$E

ùDEGHÎGH>S°�D:xyGH

D:z}4

Éì±í,ª««¬R£®¯°±]5M

N�7?@=';/F� 25%ÀÐ3

Luen Fat HongXQÀÐ]?@;/F�X

Q25%3ÀÐxµ/16(d)}4

no5MN3pqæç]5R³0�de

3,500,000>�xª««£Rà7,425,000>

�}m¸ÆÇÀíh,Éì±;/F�3

ufäÒ��ÀC4

¸ýÿy°ó(2þ9¨Q¯è�ry,

ª««£R­®­¯°±ÍGHD:xy

è��[�3_¶dF]V{P�0�d

e3,500,000>�Sq¤0�1÷4
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Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Long term receivables/ �»J¹Ë"L

long term investments �»PQ 2,698 2,866

18. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES/LONG TERM
INVESTMENTS

The Group’s long term receivables/long term investments

represent investments in Chengdu Xingxing Rich Ocean Plastic

Products Co., Ltd. (“CD Rich Ocean”), a former subsidiary of

the Company, and Suzhou Fuyi Plastic Products Co., Ltd.

(“Suzhou Fuyi”), a former jointly-controlled entity of the Group,

in respect of which there were subcontracting arrangements

with the PRC joint venture partners. In accordance with the

subcontracting agreements, the Group forfeited its rights to

exercise significant influence/control over the financial and

operating policy decisions of CD Rich Ocean and Suzhou Fuyi

in return for fixed and guaranteed annual subcontracting fees

up to 2014. When these entities lost their status as subsidiaries

or jointly-controlled entities of the Group pursuant to the above

agreements in prior years, they were reclassified as long term

investments accordingly.

In the prior years, the directors had, in view of the fact that

Suzhou Fuyi was under the process of liquidation and no

significant amount was expected to be recovered therefrom,

fully provided for the Group’s interest in Suzhou Fuyi.

18. ÓÔº���ÿÓÔT,

5MN3�»PQ�,5)*�µ¶)*

1IÕ.=AYZT\'()*xy1I

=Az}V5MN�I{%¿)9JK=

LYZT\'()*xyJK=Lz}3P

Q]#Ä)*-J#¨8��Ö'°ï�

^©ª4no�^©ª]5MN�J¹CP

¾v�^R#ìíy´,1I=AVJK

=L3jOV×8�ç3e7ÚÛ¨L%

¿3Àý]Ã¥ª«°¡R+²4thi)

9���[©ª,�HR³M^>+5M

Nµ¶)*2I{%¿)93:<|]́

SeÕñò+�»PQ4

,�HR³]«îN,JK=Läxy¨

A]ch»i'ÜJK=L¹�OC�P]

cSÍ5MN,JK=L3PQ>?X�

1÷4
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18. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES/LONG TERM
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Prior to adoption of HKAS 39, at 31 March 2005, the Group’s

interests in CD Rich Ocean and Suzhou Fuyi were classified as

long term investments and were stated at the Group’s share of

the net assets as at the dates when the Group’s forfeiture of

its control in CD Rich Ocean and Suzhou Fuyi became effective,

less (i) amortisation for the investment amounts which would

be recovered through the receipt of subcontracting fees from

the joint venture partners over the subcontracting period; and

(ii) any impairment losses. Upon adoption of HKAS 39, on 1

April 2005, the Group’s interests in CD Rich Ocean and Suzhou

Fuyi were reclassified as long term receivables.

During the year, Suzhou Fuyi was disposed of to an independent

third party at a net consideration of HK$1,636,000. A gain on

derecognition of HK$1,636,000 was recognised in the income

statement.

19. PREPAID RENTALS

As at 31 March 2006, the Group prepaid an amount of

approximately HK$4,254,000 (2005: HK$6,410,000) in respect

of the rentals for the land and buildings situated in Mainland

China under an operating lease agreement for the period up

to 26 July 2008. At 31 March 2006, the portion of the prepaid

rental for the year ending 31 March 2007 of approximately

HK$2,156,000 (2005: HK$2,156,000) has been included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables under current

assets, while an amount of approximately HK$2,098,000 (2005:

HK$4,254,000) attributable to the period after 31 March 2007

has been classified as a non-current asset.

18. ÓÔº���ÿÓÔT,
CDE

Þß=>pqvwá39F�],ª««£

R­®­¯°±]5MN,1I=A3V

JK=LÀÐñò+�»PQ]c�5M

N,ìí1I=AVJK=L%¿À3±

�¸|�5MN,Äi)93Q[Ò�R

�à(i)sÎPQ"ïxÄ�"ï£�7,�

^»ÆÜ¨8��¹�3�^#¹�}�

�V (ii)bc0�deí�Ë4Þß=>p

qvwá39Fí],ª««£R¡®°

±]5MN,1I=AVJK=L3ÀÐ

eÕñò+�»J¹Ë"4

RS]5MN��nÒP1,636,000>�?

@JK=LÂ(2á­'4,¹ÐËJ6

���6�3/ý1,636,000>�4

19. |}KM

,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]5MNS#

<,J#C��×8ø¦='3D:VL

�h;©¥ª««PRÅ®ª¯¬±3ø

G ¦ 4,254,000> �x ª « « £ Rà

6,410,000>�}4,ª««¬R­®­¯

°±]©¥ª««ÅR­®­¯°±²R

³h;øG}�¦2,156,000>�xª««

£Rà2,156,000>�}Sq¤ågQ[ï

Ô3h;"ï�CGV´FJ¹"ï]�ª

««ÅR­®­¯°±3í»Æ3JÓ�

P ¦ 2,098,000> �x ª « « £ Rà

4,254,000>�}S�+AågQ[4
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20. INVENTORIES

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Raw materials �Ê 18,067 14,988

Finished goods T1\ 3,607 5,107

21,674 20,095

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers generally have

credit terms of up to 60 days and non-interest bearing (except

for certain well-established customers having strong financial

strength, good repayment history and credit worthiness, where

the credit terms are extended to 90 to 120 days). Overdue

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view

of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts

and bills receivable relate to a large number of diversified

customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills receivables

as at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Within 30 days 30±S 22,184 24,600

31 to 60 days 31¥60±3Æ 9,738 7,001

61 to 90 days 61¥90±3Æ 4,321 8,336

Over 90 days 90±�� 2,358 –

38,601 39,937

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts and bills

receivables approximate to their fair values.

20. ÃÄ

21. º���6;@

5MN°ì-tyÖ2x`».¬¯±V

NÝ3ÕÈ�"x�>¬jæ8"QÝ�

�"R]ãSVx�ãS3�»ty�]

´x`»uT�+90¥120±}4ïTÆÇ

À£C»UVö»ÉÊ4r,���[V

5MN3J¹Ë"V3o�VUÏi{3

ty]ÏcdeCMJ3x$þÿ4

,Éì±]�/3±qì3J¹Ë"V3

oËVñq\Ôà

5MNJ¹Ë"V3o3Ë��-´)�

n��>4
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22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$5,688,000 as at 31 March

2006 (2005: HK$4,237,000) were pledged for trust receipt

loans and other short term trade financing facilities granted to

the Group (note 25). The carrying amounts of the pledged

deposits approximate to their fair values.

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group Company
{éê {*+

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

Cash and bank balances äGV�yÉÊ 14,200 13,336 76 7,910

As at 31 March 2006, the cash and bank balances of the

Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to

approximately HK$1,636,000 (2005: HK$228,000). RMB is not

freely convertible into other currencies, however, under the

PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration

of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and

bank balances approximate to their fair values.

22. ûABÃ�

5MN,ª««¬R­®­¯°±3�y

â " 5,688,000> �x ª « « £ Rà

4,237,000>�}S#xW¹o`"V´F

#Â5MN3L»ÕÈ*Qx`PÂ�M

!xµ/25}4'M!â"3Ë��-´)

�n��>4

23. ÅM6C,��

,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]5MN�W

õþxyWõþz}��3äGV�yÉÊ

¦ + 1,636,000> �x ª « « £ Rà

228,000>�}4Wõþiu]¸¾�´F

ãþ43�]noJ#�IÆ¿E�VÆÇ

Éì�?@-:;�IE�]5MN½­�

7ýÎxy�I9O3�y£Wõþ¾�

+´Fãþ4

�yäG���yß»â"ýÿ+rv3

XgýÿY�ýÝ4äGV�yÉÊ3Ë

��-´)�n��>4
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24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the

balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Within 30 days 30±S 5,803 5,843

31 to 60 days 31¥60±3Æ 3,843 4,437

61 to 90 days 61¥90±3Æ 4,058 2,876

Over 90 days 90±�� 3,526 6,068

17,230 19,224

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts and bills payables

approximate to their fair values.

24. º}��6;@

,Éì±]�/3±»qì3J;ËïV

3oËVñq\Ôà

5MN3J;ËïV3o3Ë��-´)

�n��>4
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Group
{éê

Effective 2006 2005
interest rate Maturity HK$’000 HK$’000
òDÏE FÔ) !""#$ ª««£R

(%) Ü:Ý ¦>�

Current

GÔ

Finance lease payables (note 26) 9 2007 153 1,355

*Qø¦J;"ïxµ/26}

Bank loans – secured US dollar 2007 13,251 12,601

�y`"B'M! best lending

rate minus 0.75

6�ZZ[`"

ýÿ00.75

Bank loans – unsecured 6 2006 19,231 1,401

�y`"BdM!

Other borrowings – unsecured 5 – 18 On demand/ 4,301 11,077

´F!`BdM! 2006

,\ö|��L

2006

36,936 26,434

Non-current

`GÔ

Finance lease payables (note 26) 9 2008-2010 637 –

*Qø¦J;"ïxµ/26}

Bank loans – unsecured 6 2006 – 18,692

�y`"BdM!

Other borrowings – secured 12 2009 12,117 11,693

´F!`B'M!

Other borrowings – unsecured 18 2006 – 699

´F!`BdM!

12,754 31,084

49,690 57,518

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

25. GÁ@C,6¶·Â¹
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Group
{éê

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Analysed into: ñq+à

Bank loans repayable: Í,Ô�(»��3�y`"à

Within one year or on demand ,°RS2,\ö|�� 32,482 14,002

In the second year ,áªR – 18,692

In the third to fifth years, inclusive ,á­¥á£Rx^_Ü]wR} – –

32,482 32,694

Other borrowings repayable: Í,Ô�(»��3´F!`à

Within one year or on demand ,°RS2,\ö|�� 4,301 11,077

In the second year ,áªR – 616

In the third to fifth years, inclusive ,á­¥á£Rx^_Ü]wR} 12,117 11,776

16,418 23,469

Finance lease payables: Í,Ô�(»��3*Qø¦

J;"ïà

Within one year or on demand ,°RS2,\ö|�� 153 1,355

In the second year ,áªR 167 –

In the third to fifth years, inclusive ,á­¥á£Rx^_Ü]wR} 470 –

790 1,355

49,690 57,518

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

25. GÁ@C,6¶·Â¹CDE
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2006, the Group’s bank and other borrowings

were secured by:

(i) A pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting to

HK$5,688,000 (2005: HK$4,237,000) (note 22);

(ii) A legal charge on the Land and the Building. The net

book values of the Land and the Building were

approximately HK$4,186,000 and HK$7,560,000 as at

31 March 2006, respectively (notes 15 and 14); and

(iii) Unlimited joint and several personal guarantees executed

by a director and his  spouse to the extent of

HK$13,251,000, for a bank loan granted to the Group

in the amount of HK$13,251,000 as at 31 March 2006

(2005: HK$12,601,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current and non-current

borrowings approximate to their fair values.

26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases a motor vehicle for its business operations.

The lease was classified as a finance lease and had a remaining

lease term of five years. In April 2005, the amounts payable in

relation to a finance lease of certain of the Group’s plant and

machinery for its manufacturing activities were fully repaid.

25. GÁ@C,6¶·Â¹CDE

,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]5MN3�

yV´F!`m¸Ô�ãï>M!à

(i) 5MN3C»â"5,688,000>�

xª««£Rà4,237,000>�}3

M!xµ/22}�

(ii) D:VL�3ECM!4ÄD:V

L�,ª««¬R­®­¯°±

3Ë�Ò�ñ�¦+4,186,000>

�V 7,560,000>�4xµ/ 15V

14}�V

(iii) ° * « î V ´ z ^ � _ 2 3

d(PI{V(2|W½¾+

13,251,000>�]5MN,ª««

¬ R ­ ® ­ ¯ ° ± ½ # Â

13,251,000>�xª««£Rà

12,601,000>�}3�y`"

5MN3¼»VA¼»!`3Ë��-´

)�n��>4

26. N,KHº}��

5MNøù°`QR>9O8Û$:4Ä

iø¦�+*Qø¦]ÊÔ3øù»+£

R4,ª««£R¡®]5MN'%øù>

¬ôõVMN>�[$:3J;"ïSn

���4
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continued)

At 31 March 2006, the total future minimum lease payments

under finance leases and their present values were as follows:

Group

Present value Present value
Minimum Minimum of minimum of minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

öI ZÏ öIKH ZÏø¦
KH�� ø¦"ï ��@Å¨ "ï3ä�

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

Amounts payable: Í,Ô�»Æ��3

J;"ïà

Within one year °RS 219 1,410 153 1,355

In the second year ,áªR 219 – 167 –

In the third to fifth years, ,á­¥á£R

inclusive x^_Ü]wR} 546 – 470 –

Total minimum finance ZÏ*Qø¦

lease payments "ïOP 984 1,410 790 1,355

Future finance charges ±íjO:? (194) (55)

Total net finance lease payables *Qø¦J;"ïÒPOq 790 1,355

Portion classified as current �>åg453Q9

liabilities (note 25) xµ/25} (153) (1,355)

Non-current portion (note 25) A¼»Q9xµ/25} 637 –

27. DUE TO A DIRECTOR AND A RELATED
COMPANY

The amount due to a director as at 31 March 2005 was

unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

The balance was fully settled during the year.

The amount due to a related company was unsecured, bore

interest at 6% per annum and was repayable on demand. The

balance was fully settled during the year.

26. N,KHº}��CDE

,ª««¬R­®­¯°±]no*Qø

¦3�÷ZÏ*Qø¦"ïOPV´ä�

\Ôà

{éê

27. Jëì6©ª*+@��

,ª««£R­®­¯°±]C«î3"

ï+dM!�NÝVd;C�"»4RS]

hi"ïSn���4

C%V)*3"ï+dM!�RÝ6%VÍ

,\ö|��4RS]hi"ïSn��

�4
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Group Company
{éê {*+

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

Secured term loan# 'M!C»`"# – 36,000 – 36,000

Unsecured loan## dM!C»`"## – 1,420 – –

– 37,420 – 36,000

Secured term loan repayable: Í,Ô�»Æ��3

'M!C»`"à

Within one year °RS – 13,500 – 13,500

In the second year ,áªR – 9,000 – 9,000

In the third to fifth years, ,á­¥á£R

inclusive x^_Ü]wR} – 13,500 – 13,500

– 36,000 – 36,000

Unsecured loan repayable Í,°RS��3

within one year dM!`" – 1,420 – –

– 37,420 – 36,000

Portion classified as ñò+åg45Ì

current liabilities Q9 – (14,920) – (13,500)

Non-current portion A¼»Q9 – 22,500 – 22,500

28. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS

# As at 31 March 2005, the secured term loan was secured by:

(i) The pledge of certain plant and machinery of the Group

with an aggregate net book value of HK$29,132,000

(note 14); and

(ii) Corporate guarantees executed by the Company and

certain subsidiaries.

During the year, the Company applied part of the proceeds

from new issue of shares to repay HK$24,900,000 (note 31) to

Wealthguard Investment Limited (“Wealthguard”), a substantial

shareholder of the Company. The remaining balance of

HK$11,100,000 was waived by Wealthguard. The pledge of

the plant and machinery of the Group and corporate guarantees

for such loan was released during the year.

28. KLWM@¹�

# ,ª««£R­®­¯°±]'M!C

»`"¸�Ôãï>M!Íà

(i) �5MNË�O�29,132,000

>�Ì>¬ôõVMN>M!

xµ/14}�V

(ii) �5MNV´>¬µ¶)*Ò

9Ì)*½¾>M!4

RS]5)*£/@Õ&3Q9�¾"

ï$�_5)*67&EWealthguard

Investment LimitedxyWealthguardz}

��24,900,000>�xµ/31}4ÊÔ3

ÉÊ11,100,000>�½WealthguardN

�4RS]5MN3ôõVMNM!V

hi)*½¾`"Så�4
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28. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

## The unsecured loan from a shareholder as at 31 March 2005

bore interest at 10% per annum and was repayable on demand.

The loan was fully settled during the year.

29. PROVISION

The Group provides for the probable future long service

payments expected to be made to employees under the Hong

Kong Employment Ordinance, as further explained under the

heading “Employee benefits” in note 2.5 to the financial

statements. The provision for long service payments of

HK$575,000 (2005: HK$575,000) is based on the best estimate

of the probable future payments which have been earned by

the employees from their services to the Group to the balance

sheet date.

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year, the convertible bonds with principal amount

of HK$50,415,000 which bore interest at 1.5% per annum

and due on 19 September 2009 issued by the Company in

2002 (the “1.5% CBs”) were converted into 252,073,520

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a

conversion price of HK$0.2 on 23 June 2005.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the convertible bonds

with principal amount of HK$40,000,000 which bore interest

at 3% per annum and due on 19 September 2009 issued by

the Company in 2002 (the “3% CBs”) were converted into

800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company

at a conversion price of HK$0.05 on 22 December 2004.

The fair values of the liability components for both of the

1.5% CBs and 3% CBs were estimated at the issuance dates

using equivalent market interest rates for similar convertible

bonds without conversion portions. The residual amounts are

assigned as the equity component and are included in

shareholders’ equity.

28. KLWM@¹�CDE

## ,ª««£R­®­¯°±]÷]°*

&EÌdM!`"�Rýÿ10%qÝ]

�Í,\ö|��4RSh`"Sn�

��4

29. È²

5MNno=>ú­��#h»±íu'

:;úû3�»®OG>?1÷]'%Ò

!,jOklµ/2.5yúûüýz°úa

[4+� 575,000>�xª««£Rà

575,000>�}3�»®OG1÷m�ú

û,Éì±lb±5MN�²'3u'±

í"ï3Z³èq�´qì4

30. UVWXY

RS]5)*,ª««ªR/yGP+

50,415,000>�3u�&5�xy1.5%u

�&5�z}]RÝ+1.5%�,ª««b

Rb®¯b±.»3u�&5�,ª««

£R¬®ª¯­±��&n0.2>�j�

+252,073,520&.&��0.01>�3ü

c&4

©¥ª««£R­®­¯°±²R³]5

)*,ª««ªR/yGP+40,000,000

>�3u�&5�xy3%u�&5�z}]

RÝ+3%�,ª««bRb®¯b±.

»3u�&5�,ª««¡R¯ª®ª¯

ª±��&n0.05>�j�+800,000,000

&.&��0.01>�3üc&4

,/y±p�cdµ'¾�ÀÌ{ò5�

Ì�¦ûüýÿèq1.5%u�&5�V

3%u�&5�45Q9Ì)��]�´Ê

GPwñz+ÀÐQ9]cq¤&EÀÐ4
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2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)
!""#$ ª««£R

Ü:Ý ¦>�
xe�}

Nominal values of the convertible ,¡®°±S/y

bonds in issue at 1 April u�&5���

– 1.5% CBs B1.5%u�&5� 50,415 50,415

– 3% CBs B3%u�&5� – 40,000

50,415 90,415

Equity components ÀÐQ9 (14,130) (21,490)

Interest expenses in prior years �HR³ýÝK: 6,320 6,872

Interests paid in prior years �HR³S;3ýÝ (1,913) (2,931)

Liability components at 1 April ,¡®°±345Q9 40,692 72,866

Interest expense for the year 5R³ýÝK: 439 4,168

Interest paid for the year 5R³S;3ýÝ – (1,656)

Conversion of 1.5% CBs in the year 5R³j�1.5%u�&5�

(2005: conversion of 3% CBs) xª««£Ràj�3%u�&5�} (41,131) (34,686)

Liability components at 31 March ,­®­¯°±345Q9 – 40,692

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of both the 1.5%

CBs and 3% CBs have been split between the liability and the

equity components, as follows:

30. UVWXYCDE

/y1.5%u�&5�V3%u�&5��

¾"ïÒPSñ+45VÀÐQ9\Ôà
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2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Authorised: ECà

24,000,000,000 ordinary shares 24,000,000,000&.&��

of HK$0.01 each 0.01>�3üc&&9 240,000 240,000

Issued and fully paid: S/yVö?&5à

5,145,273,520 (2005: 4,211,200,000) 5,145,273,520&xª««£Rà

ordinary shares of 4,211,200,000&}.&��

HK$0.01 each 0.01>�3üc&&9 51,453 42,112

31. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

The following changes in the Company’s issued share capital

took place during the year:

(a) On 22 April 2005, Wealthguard placed 682,000,000

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company to

certain independent investors at HK$0.04 per share.

On the same day, the Company allotted and issued

682,000,000 new shares to Wealthguard at HK$0.04

per share, with gross proceeds of approximately

HK$27,280,000, before expenses of HK$273,000. The

new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the

existing issued shares of the Company. The excess of

the consideration received over the nominal value of

the shares issued, in the amount of HK$20,460,000,

was cred i ted to the share premium account .

HK$24,900,000 of the net proceeds of approximately

HK$27,007,000 was applied to partially settle the

HK$36,000,000 secured term loan due to Wealthguard

(note 28).

31. W{

WN

5)*ÌS/y&5,RSÌfgÒ!\

ÔÍ

(a) ,ª««£R¡®ª¯ª±]

Wealthguard�.&0.04>�z@

.&0.01>�3682,000,000&ü

c&Â(2PQ�4{±]5)*

� . & 0.04> � z / V / y

682,000,000&ÂWealthguard]�

K:273,000>���¾"ïOP

¦+27,280,000>�4Õ&9fã

'�-5)*ä'S/y&9²

'{iÀÐ4�n�?S/y&9

��3Q9x¼20,460,000>�}

q¤&9mnËS4¦27,007,000

>�3�¾"ïÒP24,900,000

> � $ > � � Q 9 J ;

Wealthguard3'M!C»`"

36,000,000>�xµ/28}4
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b) On 23 June 2005, Wealthguard exercised its right to

convert  the 1.5% CBs of HK$50,415,000 into

252,073,520 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the

Company at a conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

The new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the

existing issued shares of the Company. Upon conversion,

the carrying value of the 1.5% CBs was transferred to

the Company’s  equity. The conversion resulted in an

increase in share capital and share premium by

approximately HK$2,521,000 and HK$52,740,000,

respectively.

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The first share option scheme of the Company, which became

effective on 13 September 1995, was terminated upon the

adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 19

August 2003.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing

incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to

the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of

the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including

independent non-executive directors of the Company, any of

its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any

equity interest (the “invested entity”), other employees of the

Group, suppliers of goods or services, customers, and

shareholders of any member of the Group or the invested

entity or holders of securities issued by any member of the

Group or the invested entity. The Scheme became effective on

19 August 2003 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,

will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

31. W{CDE

(b) ,ª««£R¬®ª¯­±]

Wealthguardy´´�&À]��

&n.&0.2>�£1.5%u�&5

�50,415,000>�j�+5)*

252,073,520&.&��0.01>�

Ìüc&4Õ&9fã'�-5)

*ä'S/y&9²'{iÀÐ4

,¾�í]1.5%u�&5�3Ë�

�j¥5)*ÀÐ4¾�5�¡¢

& 5 V & 9 m n ñ � Ð Ñ ¦

2,521,000>�V52,740,000>�4

32. OWQGô

5)*3ÜÝº&Àq°,°bb£Rb

®¯­±� ]̧c,ª««­RP®¯b

±Õº&Àq°xyÄq°z}½Þß|Å

²4

5)*ö2Äq°�cdV�k+5MN

9O31½>?ef3¨Q¯WX4Äq

°3¨Q¯í-�^_5)*3«îx^

_5)*V´bcµ¶)*25)*=b

c&À3�àxyPQ�àz}3(2A×

y«î}�5MN3´Fúû�ã\V®O

9J��tyV5MNbc1û)*2P

Q�à3&E]2¸5)*1û)*2P

Q�à/y3v�='W4Äq°,ª«

«­RP®¯b±� ]̧V�A�y/Î
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently

permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount

equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the

Company in issue at any time. Options that lapse in accordance

with the terms of this scheme will not be counted for the

purpose of calculating the 10% limit unless the Company

obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to renew the limit

provided that the maximum number of shares in respect of

which options may be granted under the Scheme together

with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under

the Scheme and any other schemes shall not exceed 30% of

the issued shares from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options

to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month

period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue

at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of

this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general

meeting.

An option may not be sold, transferred, charged, mortgaged

or assigned and is personal to the grantee.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon

payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the

grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is

determinable by the directors, and commences on the day on

which the offer for the grant of options is made and ends on a

date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the

offer but subject to the early termination of the Scheme.

The exercise price for shares is determinable by the directors,

but may not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of

the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on

the date of the grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the

average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily

quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares.

32. OWQGôCDE

noÄq°ä|aÎ#?3·�y´º&

À�Ì]�PZï�i,y´|5)*i

|S/y&5310%4noÄq°�"M

¸3º&À£ipq¤h10%(PS]ë

énoÄq°#?3º&ÀV{noÄq

°Vbc´Fq°�Ây´3JÊº&À

3&9Zï�Pcd�7t|S/y&9
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No share options were granted during the year and there are

no outstanding share options under the Scheme at the balance

sheet date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

33. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result

of the Group reorganisation prior to its public listing on

2 October 1995 and represents the difference between

the nominal value of the shares of the former holding

company of the Group acquired pursuant to the Group

reorganisation, over the nominal value of the shares of

the Company issued in exchange therefor.

Upon the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, the Group

applied the transitional provisions of SSAP 30 “Business

combinations”, which permit goodwill and negative

goodwill in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries and

jointly-controlled entities that occurred prior to the

adoption of SSAP 30 to remain eliminated against

consolidated reserves or credited to the capital reserve,

respectively. The amount of negative goodwill remaining

in the consolidated reserves arising from the acquisition

of a jointly-controlled entity prior to the adoption of

SSAP 30 was HK$4,581,000 as at 31 March 2005. Upon

the adoption of the transitional provision of HKFRS 3,

the Group derecognised at 1 April 2005 the carrying

amount of negative goodwil l  remaining in the

consolidated capital reserve against accumulated losses.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in

note 2.4 to the financial statements.

32. OWQGôCDE

RSZd#?º&À],Éì±«dbc

noÄq°·�y´3�&À4
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Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

WNþ¼� ò-Q� RGàá �G
¦>� ¦>� ¦>� ¦>�

At 1 April 2004 ,ª««¡R¡®°±

As previously reported � ��k 146,585 159,393 (370,551) (64,573)

Prior year adjustments 7HR³3Ó{ – – (3,941) (3,941)

As restated e� 146,585 159,393 (374,492) (68,514)

Issue of new shares /yÕ&9 7,840 – – 7,840

Share issue expenses Õ&9K: (85) – – (85)

Conversion of ¾�u�&5�

convertible bonds 34,046 – – (34,046)

Loss for the year RSde – – (29,062) (29,062)

At 31 March 2005 ,ª««£R­®­¯°± 188,386 159,393 (403,554) (55,775)

At 1 April 2005 ,ª««£R¡®°±

As previously reported � ��k 186,340 159,393 (397,101) (51,368)

Prior year adjustments 7HR³3Ó{ 2,046 – (6,453) (4,407)

As restated e� 188,386 159,393 (403,554) (55,775)

Issue of new shares /yÕ&9 20,460 – – 20,460

Share issue expenses Õ&9K: (273) – – (273)

Conversion of ¾�u�&5�

convertible bonds 52,740 – – 52,740

Reduction of share l0&9mnË

premium account (254,421) – 254,421 –

Loss for the year RSde – – (5,562) (5,562)

At 31 March 2006 ,ª««¬R­®­¯°± 6,892 159,393 (154,695) 11,590

33. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Company

33. P²CDE

(b) {*+
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31 March 2006

33. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a

result of the Group reorganisation referred to in note

33(a), and represents the excess of the then combined

net assets of the subsidiaries acquired, over the nominal

value of the share capital of the Company issued in

exchange therefor.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 12 September

2005, the share premium account of the Company was

reduced by HK$254,421,000 to offset against part of

the accumulated losses of the Company.

33. P²CDE

(b) {*+CDE

5)*3�ö/Êm¸µ/33(a)

�[3MNeôq°�[�]m�

i,�¹º3µ¶)*t|JÊ

3¨<Q[Ò�]R�lÄk¹º

�/y35)*&5��í�¾

ëP4

no,ª««£Rb®¯ª±c

73ý��ªm]5)*3&9m

nËl0¥254,421,000>�]�

MÎ5)*Qñ_qde4
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31 March 2006

HK$’000
¦>�

Net assets disposed of: ?@Q[Ò�à

Property, plant and equipment ó9�ôõVö÷ 27,158

Inventories âã 6,101

Accounts receivable J¹Ë" 1,830

Prepayments, deposits and h;"ï�CGV

other receivables ´FJ¹"ï 1,080

Cash and bank balances äGV�yÉÊ 335

Accounts payable J;Ë" (3,113)

Other payables and accruals ´FJ;Ë"VJq"ï (7,558)

Interest-bearing other borrowings ´FqÝ!` (4,673)

Minority interests Ï�&EÀÐ (6,796)

14,364

Exchange fluctuation reserve Iÿng�÷ (513)

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary ?@°Æµ¶)*3de (7,554)

6,297

Satisfied by: ?Qà

Cash consideration received S¹äG�n 1,000

Cash consideration receivable J¹äG�n 1,000

Waiver of an amount due to ½oN3J;¨8��

a joint venture partner C" 4,297

6,297

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary during the
year ended 31 March 2005

34. ÅMab=v�/

(a) ��!""�$%&%'

()e$�:^_(:�

�*+
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31 March 2006

HK$’000
¦>�

Cash consideration received S¹äG�n 1,000

Cash and bank balances disposed of ?@äGV�yÉÊ (335)

665

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary during the
year ended 31 March 2005 (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is

as follows:

The subsidiary disposed of contributed HK$39,775,000

to the Group’s revenue and a net loss of HK$12,620,000

to the consolidated loss for that year.

(b) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, Wealthguard, being a substantial

sha reho lde r  o f  the  Company,  wa i ved

HK$11,100,000 of the secured term loan.

(ii) During the year, 252,073,520 ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each in the Company were issued at a

price of HK$0.2 per share, amounting to

HK$50,415,000 in total,  pursuant to the

conversion terms, rights and conditions of the

1.5% CBs of HK$50,415,000.

(iii) During the year, the Group entered into a finance

lease arrangement in respect of an item of

property, plant and equipment with a capital

va lue  at  the  incept ion of  the  lease  of

approximately HK$900,000.

34. ÅMab=v�/CDE

(a) ��!""�$%&%'

()e$�:^_(:�

�*+CDE

'%?@µ¶)*3äGVi{

äGïÌ3å¤ÒPñq\Ôà

?@µ¶)*Ó5MNRS¹Ð

339,775,000>��V�ðí§

¨de3deÒP12,620,000>

�4

(b) 7s`ÅMST

(i) 5 ) * 6 7 & E

WealthguardRS½oN

11,100,000>�3'M!

C»`"4

(ii) n o 50,415,000> � 3

1.5%u�&5�3¾��

"�ÀýV�²]5)*.

& � � 0 . 0 1> � 3

252,073,520&üc&RS

�.& 0.2>�3n¯/

y]OP�t,50,415,000

>�4

(iii) RS]5MN#°ïó9�

ôõVö÷Ö2*Qø¦

ÁÂ]Ö2ø¦3Q5O�

¦+900,000>�4
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions (Continued)

(iv) Dur ing the year  ended 31 March 2005,

800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

in the Company were issued at a price of

H K $ 0 . 0 5  p e r  s h a r e ,  a m o u n t i n g  t o

HK$40,000,000 in total,  pursuant to the

conversion terms, rights and conditions of the

3% CBs of HK$40 million.

(v) Dur ing the year  ended 31 March 2005,

Wealthguard waived interest payable by the

Group on its secured term loan, 1.5% CBs and

3% CBs of approximately HK$1,940,000, which

has been included in gain arising on write-off of

bank indebtedness and interest payable of

HK$4,940,000.

(vi) During the year ended 31 March 2005, a bank

waived a short term loan owed by the Group of

HK$3 million.

(vii) Dur ing the year  ended 31 March 2005,

subcontracting fees payable to the joint venture

partner of BJWS of HK$4,297,000 were waived

by the joint venture partner pursuant to the

disposal of a subsidiary.

34. ÅMab=v�/CDE

(b) 7s`ÅMSTCDE

(iv) © ¥ ª « « £ R ­ ®

­ ¯ ° ± ² R ³]n o

40,000,000>�33%u�

&5�3¾��"�Àý

V�²]5)*.&��

0.01>�3800,000,000&

üc&�.&0.05>�3

n ¯ / y]O P � t ,

40,000,000>�4

(v) ©¥ª««£R­®­¯

°±²R³]Wealthguard

oN5MN#'M!C»

`"V¦ 1,940,000>�

1.5%3u�&5�V3%

u�&5�xSq¤IÎ�

y 5 O [ � 3 ¹ Ð V

4,940,000>�JqýÝ}

J;3ýÝ4

(vi) ©¥ª««£R­®­¯

°±²R³]°Æ�yoN

5MNâ'33,000,000>

�L»`"4

(vii) ©¥ª««£R­®­¯

°±²R³]"ÉÊ¨8p

��°Æµ¶)*3?@

îïoNJ;Ä¨8p�

3�^#$ 4,297,000>

�4
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31 March 2006

Group Company
{éê {*+

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

Guarantees of banking facilities _µ¶)*#?3

granted to subsidiaries �yx`½¾ – – – 348,410

Guarantees of finance leases _µ¶)*#?3

granted to subsidiaries *Qøù½¾ – – – 1,355

Guarantees of banking facilities _(2á­'#?3

granted to independent �yx`½¾

third parties 7,692 8,411 – –

7,692 8,411 – 349,765

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the Company’s

contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial statements

were as follows:

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises, factory premises

and staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases

for premises are negotiated for terms ranging from two to

seven years. The terms of the leases generally require the Group

to pay deposits.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Within one year °RS 1,620 1,239

In the second to fifth years, inclusive ,áª¥á£Rx^_Ü]wR} 3,116 1,337

4,736 2,576

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no significant

operating lease commitments.

35. ¢UuX

,Éì±]jOklcdÒ935MNV

5)*2345\Ôà

36. 7fKHVW

5MNno×8ø¦ÁÂø$´i)qó

9�+ôó9Vû+rs4#ó9ø¦]�

�C3ø¦»,�w¥ÅR4ø¦3�"

°ì7�5MN:;�G4

,Éì±]no5MNnoiutÎ×8

ø¦�,Ô�»Æ.»J;3�÷ZÏË

"OP\Ôà

,Éì±]5)*cdeC×8ø¦�½4
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31 March 2006

Group Company
{éê {*+

2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R !""#$ ª««£R
µ/ Ü:Ý ¦>� Ü:Ý ¦>�

Contracted, but not SÖ¦¶�Ò9à

provided for:

Capital contribution to µ¶)*Q5ef

a subsidiary (a) 22,017 28,106 – –

Prepaid land lease h;D:øù"ï

payments (b) 8,409 8,430 – –

Acquisition of an equity ¹º°Æ)*3ÀÐ

interest in a company (c) 120,000 – – –

150,426 36,536 – –

Authorised, but not S#À¶�Ö¦à

contracted for:

Construction of a ./�[ôõ

production plant 18,000 – 18,000 –

168,426 36,536 18,000 –

37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in

note 36 above, the Group had the following commitments at

the balance sheet date:

(a) The contracted commitment was in respect of capital

contribution to a subsidiary (the “Subsidiary”) operating

in Mainland China amounting to US$2,830,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$22,017,000) at 31

March 2006, which was due for payment in June 2004.

Directors of the Company intends to contribute the

remaining capital to the Subsidiary within 12 months

after the balance sheet date. During the year, the

Subsidiary applied for a reduction of registered capital

by US$2,000,000, from US$6,430,000 to US$4,430,000,

which has yet to be approved up to the date of approval

of the financial statements.

37. XY

���µ/36�[×8ø¦�½�]5M

N,Éì±'Ô��½à

(a) #_,J#C�×83µ¶)*

xyµ¶)*z}ÌQ5ef3Ö¦

�½,ª««¬R­®­¯°±

+ 2,830,0006 �x � i , ¦

22,017,000>�}]"ïS,ª«

«¡R¬®.»45)*«îh»

,Éì±í¯ª|®S_µ¶)

*efÊÔ3Q54RS]Äµ¶

) * S � u £ / 0 Q 5 ¸

6,430,0006�l02,000,0006�

¥4,430,0006�]©¥ÄijO

kl½¬­3±²]�u·fxy

J4
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37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) The  Group had unprov ided commitments  o f

RMB8,746,000 (equ iva lent  to  approx imate l y

HK$8,409,000) in respect of the land premium for a

parcel of land located in Dongguan, the PRC.

(c) On 13 December 2005, Fullson, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional

sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with

Hebei Cangzhou Chemical Group (the “Vendor”), a joint

stock company with limited liability established in the

PRC, to acquire 12% (50,470,400 state-owned shares,

or the “Sale Shares”) of the existing issued share capital

of Cangzhou Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Cangzhou

Chemical”), at a maximum cash consideration of

HK$120 mil l ion (hereinafter referred to as the

“Acquisition”). The Acquisition constitutes a very

substantial acquisition of the Company under the Listing

Rules. In order to finance the Acquisition, the Company

entered into a conditional placing agreement (the

“Placing Agreement”) with an agent on the same date

(hereinafter referred to as the “Placing”).

Cangzhou Chemical is established in the PRC as a joint

stock company with limited liability, of which 72.7% of

the issued shares are state-owned, non-freely circulating

shares (the “Non-Circulating Shares”) and the remaining

27.3% of its existing issued shares are currently listed

and traded on The Shanghai Stock Exchange (the

“Circulat ing A-Shares”). Cangzhou Chemical is

principally engaged in the sale and manufacturing of

chemical materials, the wholesaling and retailing of

plastic products and building materials as well as the

sale and manufacturing of cement.

37. XYCDE

(b) 5MN#°�<,J#E%3:

v3D:?øG3�1÷�½+

Wõþ 8,746,000�x�i,¦

8,409,000>�}4

(c) ,ª««£R¯ª®¯­±]5)

*XQâ'3µ¶)*=Õ-,

J#123'(�b)*wÇx

KË+MNxyX'z}Ö2'�²

3WX©ªxyÄ©ªz}]�¹º

Cangzhou Chemical Industrial Co.,

Ltd.xyxKË+z}ä'S/y&

53 12%x50,470,400&#'&

9]2yÎ@&9z}]O�nZÏ

+120,000,000>�x�Ôð+yÄ

¹ºîïz}4Ä¹ºîïno�û

�wÓ5)*¹ºîïyCQñ4

+QzÄ¹ºîï]5)*-�Ç

W,{±Ö2'�²z@©ª

xyz@©ªz}x�Ôð+yz

@z}4

xKË+,J#12+'(�b

)*]́ J72.7%3S/y&9¶

#óâ'�A]¸åc&xyAåc

&9z}]ÊÔ27.3%3ä'S/y

&9xyåcA&z}äS,�ºv

�ÇÈ��ûVWX4xKË+6

7ÜîÎ@V�[Ë{|Ê]¬/

V«@YZ[\V/}|Ê]�V

Î@V�[Ä~4
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37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Vendor had granted

Fullson an option to further acquire 20,559,600 shares

in Cangzhou Chemical currently held by the Vendor,

representing approximately 4.88% of the existing issued

share capital of Cangzhou Chemical.

The Agreement and the Placing Agreement were duly

approved by the shareholders of the Company at a

special general meeting held on 13 April 2006 (the

“Original Condition Fulfillment Date”). Since some of

the conditions set forth in the Agreement have not

been fulfilled as at the balance sheet date and the

Original Condition Fulfillment Date, the Company has,

at the request of the Vendor, agreed to extend the

Original Condition Fulfilment Date to 13 July 2006.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 13

July 2006, certain conditions set forth in the Agreement

have not been fulfilled at the same date and the Vendor

is still in the course of obtaining approvals from the

relevant PRC authorities in relation to the disposal of

the Sale Shares to Fullson. Upon receiving a notice of

request from the Vendor, the directors of the Company

have agreed to further extend the Original Condition

Fulfillment Date to 13 January 2007.

37. XYCDE

(c) x³}

noÄ©ª]X'S#Â=Õx°

p¹ºX'ä|='xKË+3

20,559,600&&93»¼À]Äi

&9�t,xKË+ä'S/y

&53¦4.88%4

5)*&E,ª««¬R¡®¯

­±xy�ÖÄi�².1±»z}

�y3ý�&ECpJ¯G¬­

Ä©ªVz@©ª4̧ ,Ä©ªÓ

�3°��²,Éì±V�ÖÄ

i�².1±»ø�.1]5)*

S�X'7�{îT��ÖÄi

�².1±»¥ª««¬RÅ®

¯­±4

no5)*,ª««¬RÅ®¯

­±/?3)t]Ä©ªÓ�3>

¬�²,t±c�.1]�X'ø

¯#_=Õ?@Î@&9_�%

J#M%�¾¬�4¹.X'37

�c�í]5)*«î{îx°p

T��ÖÄi�².1±»¥ª

««ÅR°®¯­±4



!"#$%&

Notes to Financial Statements

'(()**# +,-./01234 137

!""#$%&%'()
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group also

had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year:

(i) Certain of the Group’s loan facil it ies were

supported/pledged by personal guarantees

executed by certain directors of the Company

and the spouse of one of the directors of the

Company, as further disclosed in note 25 to the

financial statements.

(ii) In last year, a director, a related company and

certain shareholders of the Company have

advanced loans to the Group.

(iii) During the year, Wealthguard, being a substantial

sha reho lde r  o f  the  Company,  wa i ved

HK$11,100,000 of the secured term loan. In last

year, Wealthguard waived interest payable by

the Group on its secured term loan, 1.5% CBs

and 3% CBs of approximately HK$1,940,000,

which has been included in gain arising on the

write-off of bank indebtedness and interest

payable of HK$4,940,000 for the year ended 31

March 2005.

38. ©ª«¬ST

(a) �jOkl´F:'���3Ä

iÇÈVÉÊ�],RS]5N-

%VWX«'�Ôe7ÇÈà

(i) 5MN>¬`"*Q¸5

)*>¬«îV5)*°

*«î3�i_23|W

½¾]>+:=LM!]x

°pÒ!,jOklµ/

25S��4

(ii) ^R]5)*3°<«î�

°ó%V)*V>¬&E

S_5MN�;`"4

(iii) R S]5 ) * 6 7 & E

W e a l t h g u a r dS N �

11,100,000>�3'M!

C » ` " 4 ^ R ]

WealthguardN�5MN#

´'M!C»`"�1.5%

u�&5�V3%u�&5

�3J;ýÝ¦1,940,000

>�]́ S1¤©¥ª««

£R­®­¯°±²R³

IÎ�y5OVJ;ýÝ

[�3¹Ð 4,940,000>

�4
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2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000

!""#$ ª««£R
Ü:Ý ¦>�

Short term employee benefits L»úûüý 2,589 3,170

Post-employment benefits ú$íüý 24 24

Total compensation paid to :;67ÆÇWû3

key management personnel ò�OP 2,613 3,194

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 9 to the financial statements.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings, finance leases, cash and

short term deposits. The Group has various other financial

assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables and

accounts and bills payables, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments

are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity

risk and credit risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees

policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

38. ©ª«¬STCDE

(b) ò�5MN67ÆÇWûà

«î·¼3´FÒ!Ó,jOkl

µ/94

39. ;<Z[\]Ç^³op

5MN367G*+,^_�:�qÝ�

y! �̀*Qøù�VäGTL»â"45

MN'>¬´FG*Q[V45]\ÃÚ

]´9O[�3J¹Ë"V3oVJ;Õ

ÈË"V3o4

5MNG*+,�[�367þÿ+äG

å�ýÿþÿ��Iþÿ�x`þÿVåg

QGþÿ4«îpUÖc{îÔ��Z[

ÆÇãïhiþÿ3æç4
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The interest rate of the interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 25 to the

financial statements. Directors of the Company believe its

exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure

arise from substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating

units in United States (“US”) dollars and RMB. The Group is

exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of

US dollars and RMB. Considering that there is insignificant

fluctuation in the exchange rates of US dollars and RMB against

Hong Kong dollars, directors of the Company believe its

exposure to exchange rate risk is minimal.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging

policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange

exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

Liquidity risk

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding

and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings. The directors of the Company have reviewed

the Group’s working capital  and capital  expenditure

requirements and determined that the Group has no significant

liquidity risk.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third

parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to

trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification

procedures. In addition, receivables balances are monitored on

an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy

third parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

39. ;<Z[\]Ç^³op
CDE

ÅMa_ÏEZ[

5MN3qÝ3�yV´F!`ýÿ,5

jOklµ/25��45)*«î�x�

-3äGýÿþÿ��4

ØÙZ[

5MN�-ÇÈãþþÿ4'%þÿ67

¸9Oê<�6�VWõþxyWX[

�45MN��-3+6�VWõþ3�

þþÿ4r,6�VWõþ¾>�3�ÿ

ngiC]5MN«î�x�-3��þ

ÿ��4

5MNÌ�cdÞ$bc�þÍ�æç4

3�]ÆÇÀp���þþÿ]cp,ñ7

|h�Í�eC3�þþÿ4

ab,MZ[

5MN�7qÝ3�yV´F! ]̀<=

QG=³9JV�ßa3Æ3��45)

*«îSUV5MN38ÛQGVQ5:

?ñ�]c�+5MNcdeC3ågQ

Gþÿ4

`¹Z[

5MNõ-½6�V'x�3á­'xy

ÇÈ45MNpÍ��Ë'GÇÈ3ty

xyx`¥�4h�]J¹Ë"ÉÊ«p>

C»¥¦4

¸,5MNõ-½6�V'x�3á­'

xyÇÈ]lh°ì!"Ôdñ7�¾M

!\4
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40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, other than those

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following

significant event has taken place:

On 9 June 2006, the Company entered into a subscription

agreement with Forex Investment Development Limited

(“Forex”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

and independent to the Group, in relation to the subscription

of a 2-year, 4% guaranteed convertible note and convertible

into ordinary shares of, the Company up to a principal amount

of HK$46.5 million (the “New CBs”). It is intended that, among

the estimated net proceeds of HK$46.2 million, HK$28.2 million

will be used as general working capital and HK$18 million will

be used as the Group’s future investments in construction of

production plants and its ancillary facilities.

The New CBs, if fully subscribed for and issued, are convertible

into a total of 191.4 million new ordinary shares of the

Company at the initial conversion price of HK$0.243 per

ordinary share. As at the date of these financial statements,

the subscription has not yet completed as certain conditions

have not been satisfied.

41. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial

statements, due to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

during the current year, the accounting treatment and

presentation of certain items and balances in the financial

statements have been revised to comply with the new

requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year and opening

balance adjustments have been made and certain comparative

amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with

the current year’s presentation and accounting treatment.

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 21 July 2006.
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